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Managements Discussion and Analysis

As management of the City of Brenham we offer readers of the City of Brenhamsfinancial statements

this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the City of Brenham for the fiscal year

ended September 30 2007 We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in

conjunction with additional information that we have furnished in our letter of transmittal which can be

found on pages 14of this report All amounts unless otherwise indicated are expressed in thousands of

dollars

Financial Highlights Amounts Expressed in Thousands

The assets of the City of Brenham exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent fiscal

year by 73133 net assets Of this amount 12966 unrestricted net assets may be used to

meet the governments ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors

The governmentstotal net assets increased by2268
As of the close of the current fiscal year the City of Brenhamsgovernmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of12008 a decrease of259 in comparison with the prior year

Approximately 11674 is available for spending at the governmentsdiscretion unreserved fund

balance
At the end of the current fiscal year unreserved fund balance for the general fund was2251 or

23 4 percent of total general fund expenditures
The City of Brenhamstotal bonded debt decreased by1888 44 percent during the current

fiscal year

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Brenhams basic

financial statements The City of Brenhamsbasic financial statements comprise three components 1
governmentwide financial statements 2 fund financial statements and 3 notes to the financial

statements This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial

statements themselves

Governmentwidefinancial statements

The governmentwide flnancia statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the

City of Brenhamsfinances in a manner similar to aprivatesector business

The statement ofnet assets presents information on all of the City of Brenhamsassets and liabilities
with the difference between the two reported as net assets Over time increases or decreases in net

assets may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the City of Brenham is

improving or deteriorating

The statement of activities presents information showing how the governmentsnet assets changed
during the most recent fiscal year All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the underlying event

giving rise to the change occurs regardless of the timing of related cash flows Thus revenues and

expenses are reported in this statement for some items that will only result in cash flows in future fiscal

periods eg uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave

Both of the governmentwide financial statements distinguish functions of the City of Brenham that are

principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues governmental activities from other

functions that are intended to recover all or a significant portion of their costs through user fees and

charges businesstype activities The governmental activities of the City of Brenham include general
government public safety highways and streets debt service health and welfare and culture and

recreation The businesstype activities of the City of Brenham include water sewer sanitation gas and

electric distribution operations

The governmentwide financial statements include not only the City of Brenham itself known as the

primary government but also a legally separate community development corporation Brenham
Community Development Corporation BCDC for which the City of Brenham is financially accountable



Financial information for this component unit is reported separately from the financial information

presented for the primary government itself

The governmentwide financial statements can be found on pages 1921 of this report

Fund financial statements

A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been

segregated for specific activities or objectives The City of Brenham like other state and local

governments uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate compliance with financerelated legal
requirements All of the funds of the City of Brenham can be divided into three categories governmental
funds proprietary funds and fiduciary funds

Governmental funds

Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same functions reported as governmental
activities in the governmentwide financial statements However unlike the governmentwide financial

statements governmental fund financial statements focus on nearterm inflows and outflows of spendable
resources as well as on balances of spendable resources available at the end of the fiscal year Such

information may be useful in evaluating agovernmentsnearterm financing requirements

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the governmentwide financial

statements it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar

information presented for governmental activities in the governmentwide financial statements By doing
so readers may better understand the longterm impact of the governments nearterm financing
decisions Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund statement of revenues

expenditures and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to facilitate this comparison between

governmental funds and governmental activities

The City of Brenham maintains 20 individual governmental funds Information is presented separately in

the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues expenditures
and changes in fund balances for the general fund debt service fund and the 2006 capital projects fund
all of which are considered to be major funds Individual fund balance sheets and statements of revenues

expenditures and changes in fund balance for the other 17 governmental funds are presented in the

supplementary information section

The City of Brenham adopts an annual appropriated budget for its general fund A budgetary comparison
statement has been provided for the general fund to demonstrate compliance with this budget

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 2226of this report

Proprietary funds

The City of Brenham maintains two different types of proprietary funds Enterprise funds are used to

report the same functions presented as businesstype activities in the governmentwide financial

statements The City of Brenham uses enterprise funds to account for its water sewer sanitation gas

and electric distribution operations Internal service funds are an accounting device used to accumulate

and allocate costs internally among the City of Brenhams various functions The City of Brenham uses an

internal service fund to account for its risk management services Because these services predominantly
benefit governmental rather than businesstype functions they have been included within governmental
activities in the governmentwide financial statements

Proprietary funds provide the same type of information as the governmentwide financial statements only
in more detail The proprietary fund financial statements provide separate information for the water

sewer sanitation gas and electric distribution operations which are considered to be major funds of the

City of Brenham The internal service fund is reported in a separate column in the proprietary fund

financial statements

The basic proprietary fund financial statements can be found on pages 2731 of this report
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Fiduciary funds Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside

the government Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the governmentwide financial statement because

the resources of those funds are not available to support the City of Brenhamsown programs The

accounting used for fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds

The basic fiduciary fund financial statement can be found on page 32 of this report

Notes to the financial statements The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full

understanding of the data provided in the governmentwide and fund financial statements The notes to

the financial statements can be found on pages 3355of this report

Other information In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes this report also

presents certain supplementary information concerning the City of Brenhamsoperations The combining
statements referred to earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds are presented in this

section Combining and individual fund statements can be found on pages 5767 of this report The

statistical section can be found on pages 89109 of this report Information relating to federal and state

grant awards begins on page 111 of this report

Governmentwide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier net assets may serve over time as auseful indicator of a governmentsfinancial position
In the case of the primary government of the City of Brenham assets exceeded liabilities by 73133 at

the close of the most recent fiscal year

By far the largest portion of the City of Brenhamsnet assets 81 percent reflects its investment in capital
assets eg land buildings machinery and equipment less any related debt used to acquire those

assets that is still outstanding The City of Brenham uses these capital assets to provide services to

citizens consequently these assets are not available for future spending Although the City of Brenhams

investment in its capital assets is reported net of related debt it should be noted that the resources

needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources since the capital assets themselves

cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities

City of BrenhamsNet Assets

Governmental Businesstype Total

Activities Activities

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

Current and other assets 13919 14422 14083 12724 28002 27146

Capital assets 46771 45641 46547 48237 93318 93878
Total assets 60690 60063 60630 60961 121320 121024

Longterm debt outstanding 21006 22091 18903 19768 39909 41859

Other liabilities 2373 2133 5904 6166 8277 8299
Total liabilities 23379 24224 24807 25934 48186 50158

Net assets

Invested in capital assets
net of related debt 32212 31936 27083 27483 59295 59419

Restricted 334 1439 539 1555 873 2994
Unrestricted 4764 2464 8201 5989 12965 8453

Total net assets 37310 35839 35823 35027 73133 70866

1 As restated see Note IV F

An additional portion of the City of Brenhamsnet assets 1 percent represents resources that are

subject to external restrictions on how they may be used The remaining balance of unrestricted net

assets 12965 may be used to meet the governmentsongoing obligations to citizens and creditors

At the end of the current fiscal year the City of Brenham is able to report positive balances in all three

categories of net assets for the government as a whole The same situation held true for the prior fiscal

year
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The governmentstotal net assets increased by 2268 during the current fiscal year This increase

represents the degree by which the revenue stream exceeded the ongoing expenditures

City of BrenhamsChanges in Net Assets

Governmental Businesstype Total

Activities Activities

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006
Revenues

Program revenues

Charges for services 787 757 38345 41288 39132 42045
Operating grants and

contributions 915 679 915 679

Capital grants and

contributions 1082 1121 10 1082 1131
General revenues

Property taxes 4152 3505 4152 3505
Sales taxes 3524 3291 3524 3291
Other taxes 3524 2956 3524 2956
Other 1422 1048 591 340 2013 1388

Total revenues 15406 13357 38936 41638 54342 54995

Expenses
General government 1888 1993 1888 1993
Public safety 5028 4719 5028 4719
Highwaystreets 2279 1637 2279 1637
Interest on Long Term Debt 991 709 991 709
Culture and recreation 3264 3048 3264 3048
Health and welfare 580 624 580 624
Water 3164 3162 3164 3162
Sewer 3560 3544 3560 3544
Electric 23341 25992 23341 25992
Gas 5647 6027 5647 6027
Sanitation 2331 2309 2331 2309

Total Expenses 14030 12730 38043 41034 52073 53764
Increase in net assets before

transfers 1376 627 893 604 2269 1231
Transfers 96 239 96 239
Increase in net assets 1472 866 797 365 2269 1231
Net assets beginning 17795 16929 34913 34548 52708 51477
Restatement of net assets 18043 113 18156
Net assets restated 35838 16929 35026 34548 70864 51477

Governmental activities Governmental activities increased the City of Brenhamsnet assets by1472
Key elements of this increase are as explained below

Overall revenues increased2050 15 3 percent during the year This increase is attributable to several
factors

Operating grants and contributions increased by 236 35 percent during the year This increase is
due to the following grants COPS Law Enforcement Technology Grant for 124 and Assistance to

Firefighters Grant for 191
Capital grants and contributions decreased by 39 3 percent during the year which is primarily due
to the prior year completion of the Brenham Greenways Streetscape Project which is offset by the two
FAA Airport Development Grants for 722

Property taxes increased by 647 184 percent during the year resulting from the combination of
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As of the end of the current fiscal year the City of Brenhamsgovernmental funds reported combined

ending fund balances of12008 a decrease of259 in comparison with the prior year

The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the City of Brenham At the end of the current fiscal year
fund balance of the general fund was2251 This represents 23 4 percent of total General Fund

expenditures

The fund balance of the City of BrenhamsGeneral Fund increased by 552 during the current fiscal year
due to a significant increase in revenues

The debt service fund has a total fund balance of 334 all of which is reserved for the payment of debt

The net increase in fund balance during the current year in the debt service fund was 133

Proprietary funds The City of Brenhamsproprietary funds provide the same type of information found

in the governmentwide financial statements but in more detail

Unrestricted net assets of the electric fund at the end of the year amounted to 5727 those of the gas

fund were 542 the water fund1052 the sewer fund 668 and the sanitation fund 69 Other factors

concerning the finances of these funds have already been addressed in the discussion of the City of

Brenhamsbusinesstype activities

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The original revenue budget was 10430 and the final amended budget was 10480 an increase of

50 To maintain consistency for accounting and reporting purposes the airport operations and

maintenance activity were moved from a special revenue fund to the general fund which included 50 in

grant revenues

The original expenditure budget was10299 and the final amended budget was10425 an increase of

126 The airport budget amendment as discussed above accounted for 84 of this increase while the

emergency replacement of a generator equaled 24 A budget amendment approving 22 for the

building security system was also approved

The original budget for transfers out increased by 280 due to a budget amendment approved by Council

1 150 to initiate funding for Hwy 290 Passthrough financing project 2 94 local match for airport
runway extension grant and the remaining amounts were transferred to special revenue funds

Year end actual revenues were favorable compared to budget due to higher tax revenues while year end

actual expenditures were under budget due to cost savings achieved through vacant budgeted positions
supplies services and capital outlays

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets The City of Brenhamsinvestment in capital assets for its governmental and business

type activities as of September 30 2007 amounts to 93317 net of accumulated depreciation This

investment in capital assets includes land buildings and system improvements machinery and

equipment park facilities roads highways and bridges The total decrease in the City of Brenhams

investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year wasone percent

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following

The City completed a valuation of land building and infrastructure in connection with the final

implementation of GASB 34 The beginning balances of capital assets have been restated to

include these assets not previously reported
Governmental constructioninprogress included 929 for airport hangar and runway

improvements 14 for a drainage project parks improvements totaling 39 and construction

costs of 93 for a new public safety facility
Businesstype constructioninprogress includes 59 for electric relayrecloser projects and 145
for various water and sewer line additions and improvements

16



City of BrenhamsCapital Assets

net of depreciation

Land

Buildings
Improvements other than

buildings
Furniture fixtures and

equipment
Vehicles

Infrastructure

Construction in progress

Impairment
Accumulated depreciation

Total

Governmental

Activities

2007 2006

2105 1 797

16020 16 009

Businesstype Total

Activities

2007 2006 2007 2006

1367 1400 3472 3197
573 598 16593 16607

10757 10451 28856 29243 39613 39694

1640 2836 1093 1286 2733 4122

5903 4740 2707 2527 8610 7267
37937 37937 41763 41687 79700 79624
1075 299 204 31 1279 330

677 677 0 0 677 677
27990 27751 30016 28534 58006 56285
46770 45641 46547 48238 93317 93879

1 As restated see Note IV F

Additional information on the City of Brenhamscapital assets can be found in note III E on pages 4243

of this report

Longterm debt At the end of the current fiscal year the City of Brenham had total bonded debt

outstanding net of unamortized charges of 41014 Of this amount 21327 is taxsupported debt

backed by the full faith and credit of the government and sales tax revenues of the BCDC Component
Unit The remaining 19687 is selfsupported debt that is to be repaid from system revenues

City of BrenhamsOutstanding Debt

General Obligation Bonds and Certificates of Obligation
Governmental

Activities

Businesstype Total

Activities

2007 2006 2007 2006 2007 2006

General Obligation Bonds 1512 7133 3530 8645 3530
Certificates of Obligation 19848 22278 12826 17087 32674 39365
Unamortized

CreditsCharges 33 55 272 48 305 7

Total 21327 22333 19687 20569 41014 42902

The City of Brenhamstotal bonded debt decreased by1888 4 4 percent during the current fiscal year

During the current year the government refinanced some of its existing debt to take advantage of

favorable interest rates

The City issued general obligation refunding bonds to refinance previously outstanding tax

supported debt and selfsupported debt that is repaid by system revenues The result is

expected to be adecrease in future debt service payments of 390

The City of Brenham maintains a AAA rating by virtue of municipal bond insurance from Standard

Poorsand Fitch for general obligation debt

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 25percent
of its total assessed valuation Additionally the Cityscharter allows a rate not exceeding 1 65 per 100
valuation for any one year The tax rate is 5063 for the year ended September 30 2007 which is

significantly below the 1 65 allowed by the Cityscharter

Additional information about the Cityslongterm debt can be found in note III HIon pages 4549of this

report
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Economic Factors and Next YearsBudgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for Washington County in September 2007 was 3 9 percent which is

higher than the rate of 3 7 percent one year ago However the current rate compares favorably
to the statesaverage unemployment rate of 4 4percent

Inflationary trends in the region compare favorably to national indices

All of these factors were considered in preparing the City of Brenhamsbudget for the 2007 fiscal year

During the current fiscal year unreserved fund balance in the general fund increased to2251 The City
of Brenhamsadopted budget for fiscal year 2008 is at a breakeven level so that general fund

expenditures do not utilize any fund balance Although the MO tax rate was increased from 3165 in

FY07 to 3245 in FY08 the debt service rate was decreased from 1898 to 1818 respectively This

allowed the City to maintain the same combined tax rate of 5063

No rate increases were necessary in the fiscal year 2008 operating budgets for the enterprise funds We

anticipate implementing a water rate increase in mid 2008 to finance debt service on an upcoming debt

issuance for water system improvements

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Brenhamsfinances for all

those with an interest in the governmentsfinances Questions concerning any of the information provided
in this report or requests for additional financial information should be addressed to the Office of the

Finance Director P O Box 1059 Brenham Texas 77834
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City of Brenham

Statement of NetAssets

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Primary Government

Governmental Businesstype Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

ASSETS

Cash and Equivalents 2293908 6163848 8457756 39478

Investments 200000 384 719 584719
Receivables Property Tax net 164147 164 147

Receivables Sales Tax 618185 618185 206062

Receivables Occupancy Taxes 44057 44057

ReceivablesAccountnet 541365 3900129 4441494 1298

Internal Balances 47723 47723
Due from Other Governments 257397 257397

Inventory at Cost 46878 593399 640277

Notes Receivable Current 42095 42095

Other Current Assets 43956 98001 141957

Restricted Cash 9211455 1454303 10665758 286689

Restricted Investments 285378 553130 838508 250078

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated 3180492 1570898 4751390 765365

Other Capital Assets Net 43589588 44975890 88565478
Notes Receivable Long Term 9500 559588 569088
Unamortized Bond Issuance Costs Net 251086 286597 537683

Total assets 60689669 60630320 121319989 1548970

LIABILITIES

Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities 566009 2771671 3337680 1553

Other Liabilities 48403 48403

Accrued Interest 123974 112607 236581

Self Insurance Claims Payable 169610 169610

Bonds Payable Current 955912 955912

Lease Payable Current 242871 81540 324411

Revenue Bonds Payable Current 1119089 1119089
Notes Payable Current Component Unit 42095

Settlement Payable Current 9719 9719

Consumer Deposits 1442998 1442998

Compensated Absences Long Term 187103 178056 365159

Rebatable Arbitrage Long Term 127131 127131

Post Closure Liability 140000 140000

Long Term Debt Net 21006430 18903277 39909707 559588

Total liabilities 23379040 24807360 48186400 603236

NET ASSETS
Invested in Capital Assets Net of Related Debt 32212469 27082608 59295077 163683

Restricted for Debt Service 333943 538822 872765

Restricted for Economic Development 517597

Restricted for Recreation 264454

Unrestricted 4764217 8201530 12965747

Total net assets 37310629 35822960 73133589 945734

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Brenham

Statement of Activities

For theYear Ended September 30 2007

NetExpense Revenue and

Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets

Primary Government

Indirect Operating Capital Grants

Expenses Charges for Grants and and Governmental Businesstype Component
FunctionsPrograms Expenses Allocation Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total Units

Primary government
Governmental activities

General Government 5912073 4023885 482252 14 723 200000 1191213 1191213
Public Safety 5028102 2321 422370 46333 4557078 4557078
Highways and Streets 2279505 13 59792 722052 1497648 1497648
Health and Welfare 580118 30290 373676 176152 176152
Culture and Recreation 3264 409 271842 44529 113283 2834755 2834755
Interest on Long Term Debt 991 486 991 486 991 486

Total governmental activities 18055693 4023885 786718 915090 1081668 11248332 11248332

Businesstype activities

Electric 21057375 2284846 23184463 157 757 157 757
Gas 5060039 586627 5639536 7130 7130
Sanitation 2132174 199142 2468172 136856 136856

N Sewer 3110551 449023 3798212 238638 238638
Water 2659763 504247 3254617 90607 90607

Total businesstype activities 34019902 4023885 38345000 301214 301214

Total primary government 52075595 39131 718 915090 1081668 11248332 301214 10947 118

Component units

Brenham Community Devel Corp 163868 163868
Total component units 163868 163868

General revenues

Property Taxes 4 152080 4 152080
Sales Taxes 3524009 3524009 1174670
Other Taxes 3524583 3524583
Investment Income not Restricted 587 125 462286 1049 411 28427
Miscellaneous 55483 267835 323318
Gain Loss on Sale of Capital Assets 9508 138624 129116
Payments from Component Unit 770877 770877 770877

Transfers 96380 96380

Total general revenues 12720045 495117 13215162 432220
Change in netassets 1 471 713 796331 2268044 268352

Netassets beginning 17 795761 34913176 52708937 677382

Restatement of net assets 18043155 113453 18156608
Netassets beginning as restated 35838916 35026629 70865545 677382
Netassets ending 37310629 35822960 73133589

T

945734

The notes to thefinancial statements are an integral part of this statement



City of Brenham

BalanceSheet

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Other Total

General DebtService 2006 Capital Governmental Governmental

Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds

Assets

Cash and Equivalents 1602513 7940 584216 2194669

Investments 200000 200000

Receivables Net
Property Taxes 107484 56663 164147

Sales Tax 618185 618185

Occupancy Tax 44057 44057

Accounts 371191 21 371212

Interfund Receivables 106653 104 768 211 421

Due from Other Governments 152381 1 131 126515 280027

Inventory at Cost 46878 46878

Other Current Assets 10825 22531 33356

Restricted Cash 324872 7924285 795052 9044209

Restricted Investments 185378 185378

Notes Receivable 9500 9500

Total Assets 3225610 390606 7924285 1862538 13403039

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable Other Current 471035 12710 82098 565843

Interfund Payables 5444 110762 116206

Deferred Revenue 503300 56663 25639 585602

Other Liabilities 167 167

Rebatable Arbitrage Long Term 127131 127131

Total Liabilities 974502 56663 145285 218499 1394949

Fund Balances

Reserved for

Debt Service 333943 333943

Unreserved reported in

Capital Projects 7 779000 943314 8722314

General Fund 2251108 2251 108

Special Revenue Funds 700725 700725

Total Fund Balances 2251108 333943 7779000 1644039 12008090

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 3225610 390606 7924285 1862538

The notes to the financial statements arean integral part of this statement
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City of Brenham

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet of Governmental Funds

To the Statement of Net Assets

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Total fund balances total governmental funds 12008090

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial resources and 46770080
therefore are not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet

Gross capital assets 75437779
Accumulated depreciation 27990301
Impairment Loss 677398

46770080

Long term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and therefore they are 22265205
not reported in the governmental funds balance sheet

Bonds payable 21360472

Less Unamortized bond issue costs 251086
Less Issuance discount 5667
Add Issuance premium 41518
Less Unamortized deferred charges 69430

Accrued interest payable 123974

Capital ease payable 878321

Compensated absences 187103

22265205

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of risk management 234692
services to individual funds The assets and liabilities of the internal service fund are

included in governmental activities in the statement of net assets

Due from Other Governments is decreased by their portion of capital lease escrow funds 22631

Other long term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures and 585603
therefore aredeferred in the funds

Net assets of governmental activities 37310629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Brenham

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Other Total

General Debt Service 2006 Capital Governmental Governmental
Fund Fund Projects Fund Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes 9267533 1542971 371468 11181972
Licenses and Permits 54487 54 487

Intergovernmental 226213 1421988 1648201
Charges forServices 331603 37258 368861
Fines and Forfeitures 363253 363253
Investment Income 138959 49068 353812 30 497 572336
Payment from Component Unit 200000 460877 110000 770877
Contributions and Donations 25 124583 124608
Miscellaneous 62347 23058 85405

Total revenues 10644420 2052916 353812 2118852 15170000

Expenditures
Current
Culture and Recreation 2171648 439365 2611013
General Government 1244538 138562 1383 100

Health and Welfare 282809 279770 562579
Highways and Streets 1153897 1 153897
Public Safety 4334950 299104 4634054

Debt service

Interest Fiscal Charges 5837 932322 938159
Principal Retirement 43388 1027437 1070825
Issuance Costs 21072 21072

Capital Outlay 401800 1528384 1566939 3497123
Total expenditures 9638867 1980831 1528384 2723740 15871822

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

Over Under Expenditures 1005553 72085 1174572 604888 701822
Other Financing Sources Uses
Transfers In 87880 37912 597995 723787
Transfers Out 541350 307034 848384
Refunding bonds issued 1524321 1524321

Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 1501306 1501306
Proceeds from Capital Lease 544300 544300

Total other financing sources and

uses 453470 60927 835261 442718

Net change in Fund Balances 552083 133012 1174572 230373 259104
Fund balances beginning 1699025 200931 8953572 1413666 12267194

Fund balances ending 2251 108 333943 7 779000 1 644039

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement
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City of Brenham

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues

Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances of Govemmental Funds

To the Statement ofActivities

For theYear Ended September 30 2007

Net change in fund balances total govemmental funds

Amounts reported forgovemmental activities in the statementof activities are different because

Govemmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures However in the statement

of activities the cast of those assets is depreciated overtheir estimated useful lives

Capital outlay 3497 124

Depreciation expense 2421 130

Donation of capital asset 200000

Proceeds from sale 4175

Gain on disposal 9508

1281327

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources

are not reported as revenue in the funds

Bond proceeds provide curcent financial resources to govemmental funds but issuing

debt increases long term liabilities in the statementof net assets Bond principal payments

are expenditures in the govemmental funds but they reduce long term liabilities in the

statement of net assets

Debt issued

General Obligation Refunding Bonds 1524321
Unamortized bond issue costs on refunding debt 19605

Repayments
To Paying Agent

For certificate principal 1501306

To bond certificate and note holders 1070825

Reallocation to Proprietary Funds 175000

Amortization of bond premiums discounts 8 charges 1 486
1240929

Some capital additions were financed through capital leases In govemmental funds

a capital leasearcangement is considered asource of financing but in the

statement of net assets the lease obligation is reported as a liability

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of curcent

financial resources and therefore are not reported as expenditures in govemmental funds

An intemal service fund is used by management to charge the costs of risk management

services to individual funds Thenet revenue of certain activities of the intemal service fund

isreported with govemmental activities

For government wide reporting bond issue costs are deferred and amortized

Change in netassets of govemmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part ofthis statement

259104

1281327

16905

1240929

544300

29257

213670

21 117

1 471 713
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City of Brenham

General Fund

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances Budget and Actual

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Budgeted Amounts

Variance with
Original Final Actual Amounts Final Budget

Revenues

Taxes 8932416 8932416 9267533 335117
Licenses and Permits 60625 60625 54 487 6138
Intergovernmental 240400 270400 226213 44187
Charges for Services 362450 362450 331 603 30847
Fines and Forfeitures 370300 370 300 363253 7 047
Investment Income 70000 70000 138959 68959
Payment from Component Unit 200000 200000 200000
Contributions and Donations 65500 65500 25 65475
Miscellaneous 128500 148500 62347 86153

Total revenues 10430 191 10480191 10644420 164229

Expenditures
Current

Cwltureand Recreation 2324 756 2324 756 2171 648 153108
General Government 1 407939 1 403664 1244 538 159126
Health and Welfare 294832 294 832 282809 12023
Highways and Streets 1 149886 1279256 1 153897 125359
Public Safety 4518773 4497409 4334950 162459

9696186 9799917 9187842 612075
Debt Service

Interest and Fiscal Charges 5837 5 837 5837
Principal 43388 43388 43388

49225 49225 49225
CapitalOutlay 553578 576250 401800 174450

Total Expenditures 10298989 10425392 9 638867 786525

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

Over Under Expenditures 131202 54 799 1 005553 950754

Other Financing Sources Uses
Transfers In 39380 39380 87 880 48500
Transfers Out 100430 380435 541350 160915

Total other financing sources and uses 61050 341 055 453470 112415

Netchange in fund balance 70152 286256 552083 838340
Fund balance beginning 1 699025 1 699 025 1699025
Fund balance ending 1 769177 1 412769 2251 108 838340

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

26



City of Brenham Texas

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For theYear Ended September 30 2007

Businesstype Activities Enterprise Funds

Electric Fund

Assets

Curcent assets
Cash and Equivalents
Investments

Receivables Accounts Net

Inventory at Cost

Other Curcent Assets

Notes Receivable Net

Restricted Cash

Restricted Investments

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets

Capital Assets Net

Unamortized Bond Issuance Cost
Notes Receivable Long Term

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Accounts Payable Other Curcent Liabilities
Other Liabilities

Accrued Interest

Interfund Payable
Self Insurance Claims Payable
Lease Payable Current

Revenue Bonds Payable Current
Settlement Payable Current

Consumer Deposits
Total current liabilities

Non current liabilities

Compensated Absences

PostGosure Liability
Long Term Debt Net

Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NetAssets

Invested in Capital Assets Netof Related Debt
Restricted forDebt Service

Unrestricted

Total net assets

Gas Fund Water Fund

4273212 385766
384719
2575101 315775

324 931 95260
44702
42095
1268610
200000 36130
9113370 832931

654074

372855
152737
31255

14211

Sewer Fund Sanitation Fund Total Gov Activities

Proprietary Internal Service

408348 442448 6163848 99239
384719

427280 209118 3900129 170154
20471 593399

22045 98002 10 600

42095
171481 1454302 167247

317000 553130 100000
1027580 990611 13189624 547240

6771324 1886214 14 728619 21900795 1259835 46546787
88027 198570 286597

559588 559588
7330912 1886214 14816646 22099365 1259835 47392972
16444282 2719145 16041778 23126945 2250446 60582596 547240

2326776 199 016 84727 34 091 127061 2771 671 788
2353 46050 48403

129 35146 74062 3270 112607
95215 95215

168822
6633 74907 81540

537025 582064 1 119 089
9 719 9719

1442998 1442998
3864989 205778 668970 736267 205238 5681242 169610

81 006 19176 27373 33448 17 052 178055
140000 140000

29497 5715667 12851891 306222 18903277
81006 48673 5743040 12885339 463274 19221332
3945995 254451 6412010 13621606 668512 24902574 169610

6771324 1886214 8563954 8665410 1 195706 27 082608
36130 14211 171481 317000 538822

5726963 542350 1051603 668448 69228 8058592 377630
12498287 2464 694 9629 768 9505339 1581 934 35680022 377 630

Some amounts reported for businesstype activities in the Statement ofActivities are different
because the netrevenueexpense of certain internal service funds arereported with business

type activities 142938
Net Assets of businesstype activities 35822960

The notes to the financial statements arean integral part of thisstatement
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City of Brenham Texas

Statement of Revenues Expenses and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds

For the Yearended September 30 2007

N

Businesstype Activities Enterprise Funds

Electric Fund Gas Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Sanitation Fund Total Gov Activities

Operating revenues
Proorietarv Internal Service

Charges for Services 23184426 5639523 3254601 3798195 2468161 38344906 2029158
Total Operating 23184426 5639523 3254601 3798195 2468161 38344906 2029158

Operating expenses
Cost of Sales and Services 17361797 3987901 193168 21542866
Salaries 630373 277461 531565 543045 401950 2384394
Supplies 207878 59113 263256 129884 233374 893505
Maintenance 385288 45372 247985 135370 57022 871037
Contractual Services 239862 17589 243292 578749 1266837 2346329 2536186
Capitalized CostsContra 89597 23617 27471 140685
Administrative Costs 2284846 586627 504247 449023 199142 4023885
Depreciation 388849 182367 560343 804288 78669 2014516
Gross Revenue Tax 1757000 442274 231000 247100 55280 2732654
Miscellaneous 72741 18132 33008 28263 9622 161766

Totaloperating expenses 23239037 5616836 2784247 2888251 2301896 36830267 2536186
Operating Income loss 54611 22687 470354 909944 166265 1514639 507028

Nonoperating revenues expenses
Investmentlncome 371955 15316 39769 4090 19076 450206 26868
Interest Expense Fiscal Charges 14662 129 337893 627482 4375 984541
Miscellaneous Net 15401 246196 1825 3500 3163 263085 8457
GainLoss on Capital Assets 1420 89278 47925 138624

Totalnon operating revenue expenses 371274 261383 385577 674817 17864 409873 35325
Income loss before
contributions and transfers 316663 284070 84777 235127 184 129 1104 766 471703

Transfers In 2399099 2399099 45977
Transfers Out 2465944 9845 9845 9845 2495479
Total Transfers InOut 2465944 9845 9845 2389254 96380 45977

Change in net assets 2149281 274225 74932 2624381 184129 1008386 425726
Total net assets beginning 14534115 2190469 9554836 6880958 1397805 803356
Restatement of net assets 113453
Total net assets restated 14647568 2190469 9554836 6880958 1397 805 803356
Total net assets ending 12498287 2464694 9 629768 9505339 1581 934 377 630

Some amounts reported for businesstype activities in the Statement of Activities aredifferent

because the net revenue expense of certain internal service funds are reported with

businesstype activities 212055
Change in net ass ets of businesstype activities 796331

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement



Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Receipts from customers and users

Receipts from interfund services provided
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees

Net cash provided used by operating activities

Cash Flows from NonCapital Financing Activities

Transfers in out
Advances from to other proprietary funds

Principal paid on settlement debt

Interest paid on consumer deposits
Interest and fees paid on settlement debt

Netcash provided used by noncapital financing activities

Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Acquisition and construction of capital assets

Retirement of Refunded Bonds

Proceeds from Issuance of Bonds0

Proceeds from Capital Lease

Proceeds from sale of capital assets

Principal paid on bonds and capital leases

Interest and fees paid on bonds and capital leases

Netcash provided used by capital and related financing activities

Cash Flows from Investing Activities

Purchase of investments

Proceeds from sale and maturities of investments

Collections on loans

Investment income received

Netcash provided used by investing activities

Net increase decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents to statementof net assets

Cash and equivalents
Restricted cash and equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents end of year

City of Brenham Texas

Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds

For theYear Ended September 30 2007

Total Gov Activities

Electric Fund Gas Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Sanitation Fund Proprietary Internal Service

23776863 5648369 3349933 3757 452 2424794 38957 411

2093267

22552845 5034154 1867575 1531558 1802263 32788395 2539268
641324 281963 538238 558780 407878 2428183
582694 332252 944120 1667114 214653 3740833 446001

2465944 9845 9845 2389254 96380 45977
2399099 2399099

15896 4750 20646
14662 14662

1104 1104
81507 9845 26845 14595 132792 45977

176006 149246 70863 78475 474590
1145181 2672615 3817796
1148187 2854560 4002747

36130 317000 353130

292 292 584

522025 571241 74258 1167524
303652 617221 6257 927130

176006 36130 971625 1077088 158010 2030579

36130 317000 353130
3268322 161137 3429459 438156
40046 40046

248223 15317 35324 4398 19077 322339 17472

3556591 20813 196461 4398 297923 3438714 455628

3881772 337724 142111 579829 74740 5016176 55604

1660050 48042 526174 367708 2601974 210882

5541822 385766 668285 579829 442448 7618150 266486

4273212 385766 654074 408348 442448 6163848 99239

1268610 14211 171481 1454302 167247
5541822 385766 668285 579829 442448 7618150 266486



Reconciliation of operating income to netcash provided

used by operating activities

Operating income loss

Adjustments to reconcile net cash provided used by operating activities

Depreciation
Provision for uncollectible accounts

Other income expense
Changes inassets and liabilities affecting cash provided by operations

Increase decrease in accounts receivable

Increase decrease in inventory
Increase decrease in intergovemmental receivables

Increase decrease in intergovemmental payables
Increase decrease in self insurance Gaims liability
Increase decrease in other assets

Increase decrease in accounts payable and other current liabilities

Increase decrease in salaries benefits payable
Increase decrease in compensated absences

Increase decreaseinconsumer deposits
Net cash provided used by operating activities

Noncash investing capital and financing activities

Increase decrease in fairvalue of investments

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

54611 22687 470354 909944 166265 1514639 507028

388849 182367 560343 804288 78669 2014516

59412 21371 34516 32775 7675 155749

15401 246196 1825 3163 266585 8458

95932 12525 58991 73518 54205 14675 55651
92508 18186 4723 1071 114346
218226 218226
95215 95215

2565
77954 77954 517

318476 105156 170513 8289 19014 566842
13985 3257 6722 10900 6749 41613
3034 1245 49 4835 821 2176

108251 108251
582694 332252 944120 1667114 214653 3740833 446001

140278 5271 145548 718



City of Brenham

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Fiduciary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Assets

Investments

Participant Loans
Total Assets

Liabilities

Net Assets

Held in trust for pension benefits
and other purposes

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement

Deferred

Compensation
Agency Fund

1906758
31967

1938725

1938725
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City of Brenham

Notes to the Financial Statements

September 30 2007

I Summary ofsignificant accounting policies

A Reporting entity

The City of Brenham is a homerulemunicipality governed by an elected mayor and sixmember council

The City operates under aCouncilManager form of government established by City charter The

accompanying financial statements present the financial operations of the City as the primary government
and those component units for which the primary government is considered to be financially accountable

The following discretely presented component unit is reported in a separate column in the government
wide financial statements to emphasize that it is legally separate from the primary government

7 Discretely presented component unit

The Brenham Community Development Corporation BCDC is a legally separate entity from the City and

is governed by a board appointed by City Council The BCDC was formed to oversee revenues and

expenditures of a special threeeighth cent sales tax for economic development and community
recreational development The City is financially accountable for the BCDC because the Citys council

approves the BCDC budget and the City Manager serves as its Chief Executive Officer For financial

reporting purposes the BCDC is reported as a governmental fund The Corporation does not issue

separate financial statements

B Governmentwideand fund financial statements

The governmentwide financial statementsie the statement of net assets and the statement of

activities report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the primary government and its

component units For the most part the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these

statements Governmental activities which normally are supported by taxes and intergovernmental
revenues are reported separately from businesstype activities which rely to a significant extent on fees

and charges for support Likewise the primary government is reported separately from the legally
separate BCDC component unit for which the primary government is financially accountable

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or

segment are offset by program revenues Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with a

specific function or segment Program revenues include 1 charges to customers or applicants who

purchase use or directly benefit from goods services or privileges provided by a given function or

segment and 2 grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular function or segment Taxes and other items not properly included among

program revenues are reported instead as general revenues

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds proprietary funds and fiduciary
funds even though the latter are excluded from the governmentwide financial statements Major
individual governmental funds and major individual enterprise funds are reported as separate columns

with composite columns for nonmajor funds in the fund financial statements

C Measurement focus basis of accounting and financial statement presentation

The governmentwide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement

focus and the accrual basis of accounting as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial

statements Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred
regardless of the timing of related cash flows Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for

which they are levied Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility
requirements imposed by the provider have been met
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Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement

focus and the modified accrual basis ofaccounting Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both

measurable and available Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the

current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period For this purpose the

government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days of the end of the

current fiscal period Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred as under accrual

accounting However debt service expenditures as well as expenditures related to compensated
absences and claims and judgments are recorded only when payment is due

Property taxes investment earnings and charges for services are recognized as revenue when earned

Licenses and permits intergovernmental revenues fines and miscellaneous items are recorded as

revenue when cash is received because they are generally not measurable until actually received

The government reports the following major governmental funds

The General Fund is the governments primary operating fund It accounts for all financial resources

of the general government except those required to be accounted for in another fund

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the resources accumulated and payments made for principal and

interest on longterm debt obligations of governmental funds

The 2006 Capital Projects Fund accounts for the resources used to construct renovate improve and

equip a police station including land acquisition and right of way acquisition of two fire trucks and

related equipment construct and equip a fire substation including land acquisition and right of way

The resources for these improvements are derived from the proceeds of certificates of obligation

The government reports the following major proprietary funds

The Electric Fund accounts for the activities of the Cityselectric distribution operations

The Gas Fund accounts for the activities of the Citysgas distribution operations

The WaterFund accounts for the activities of the Cityswater distribution and water treatment facilities

The Sewer Fund accounts for the activities of the Citys wastewater treatment plant and sewer

collection systems

The Sanitation Fund accounts for the activities of the Citys sanitation recycling and transfer station

operations

Additionally the government reports the following fund types

The Risk Management Internal Service Fund provides selfinsured health insurance risk management
services and a zero deductible plan for workers compensation to other funds of the City on a cost

reimbursement basis This fund is presented in summary form as part of the proprietary fund financial

statements The financial statements of the internal service fund are included in the governmental
activities column when presented at the governmentwide level

The Deferred Compensation Plan Fiduciary Fund is used to account for assets held by the City in a

trustee capacity for an IRS Section 457 Deferred Compensation program that is available to all city
employees This fund is not reflected in the governmentwide financial statements because the resources

of the fund are not available to support the Citysown programs

Privatesector standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1 1989

generally are followed in both the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements to the extent

that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental Accounting
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Standards Board Governments also have the option of following subsequent privatesector guidance for

their businesstype activities and enterprise funds subject to this same limitation The government has

elected not to follow subsequent privatesector guidance

As a general rule the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the governmentwide financial

statements Exceptions to this general rule are franchise tax payments and other charges between the

Citysproprietary fund functions and various other functions of the government Elimination of these

charges would distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for various functions concerned

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1 charges to customers or applicants for goods
services or privileges provided 2 operating grants and contributions and 3 capital grants and

contributions including special assessments Internally dedicated resources are reported as general
revenues rather than as program revenues Likewise general revenues include all taxes

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items Operating
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and delivering goods in

connection with a proprietary fundsprincipal ongoing operations The principal operating revenues of the

water sewer electric gas and sanitation funds and of the governmentsinternal service fund are

charges to customers for sales and services The gas electric and water funds include in their operating
revenue the recovery of source costs from customers Operating expenses for enterprise funds and the

internal service fund include the cost of sales and services operating and administrative expenses and

depreciation on capital assets All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as

nonoperating revenues and expenses

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use it is the governmentspolicy to use

restricted resources first then unrestricted resources as they are needed

D Assets liabilities and net assets or equity

1 Deposits and investments

The Citys cash and equivalents are considered to be cash on hand demand deposits and shortterm

investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition

State statutes authorize the government to invest in obligations of the U S Treasury commercial paper

collateralized mortgage obligations repurchase agreements certificates of deposit and investment pools

Investments are reported at fair value as determined by quoted market prices Interest earnings and

changes in fair value are included in investment income The City invests in no form of joint venture with

other entities

2 Receivables and payabes

Activities between funds that are representative of lendingborrowing arrangements outstanding at the

end of the fiscal year are referred to as either due to from other fundsie the current portion of inter

fund loans or advances to from other fundsie the noncurrent portion of interfund loans All other

outstanding balances between funds are reported as due to from other funds Any residual balances

outstanding between the governmental activities and businesstype activities are reported in the

governmentwide financial statements as internal balances

Advances between funds as reported in the fund financial statements are offset by a fund balance

reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for appropriation
and are not expendable available financial resources

Trade accounts and property taxes receivable are shown net of an allowance for uncollectibles
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Property taxes are levied on October 1 on property values assessed as of January 1 of each year in

conformity with Subtitle E of the Texas Property Tax Code Taxes are due upon receipt of the bill
however are not considered delinquent until February 1 of the following year Delinquent uncollected

taxes are included in the general fund assets and debt service fund assets with offsetting deferred

revenue accounts for the amounts which will not be collected within sixty days after the end of the fiscal

year

3 Inventories andprepaid items

All inventories are valued at the lower of cost or market using the firstinfirstout FIFO method

Inventories are recognized as expenditures of governmental funds and as expenses in proprietary funds

when used in accordance with the consumption method of accounting

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as

prepaid items in both governmentwideand fund financial statements

4 Restricted assets

Certain resources are set aside for the repayment of outstanding bond debt Unexpended resources from

proceeds of bond issuances have also been set aside These amounts are classified as restricted assets

on the balance sheet because their use is limited by applicable bond covenants

5 Capital assets

Capital assets which include property plant equipment and infrastructure assets eg roads bridges
sidewalks and similar items are reported in the applicable governmental or businesstype activities

columns in the governmentwide financial statements Infrastructure is defined by the government as

longlived and stationary in nature and includes streets curbs gutters drainage systems airport runways

and taxiways utility lines and utility plants Infrastructure assets have an initial cost of more than 50000
and an estimated useful life of 40 50 years Capital assets other than infrastructure assets are defined

by the government as assets with an initial individual cost of more than 15000 amount not rounded
and an estimated useful life in excess of one year Such assets are recorded at historical cost or

estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed Donated capital assets are recorded at estimated

fair market value at the date of donation

In the case of initial capitalization of general infrastructure assetsie those reported by governmental
activities the government chose to include all such items regardless of their acquisition date or amount

The government was able to estimate the historical cost for the initial reporting of these assets through
backtrendingie estimating the current replacement cost of the infrastructure to be capitalized and using
an appropriate pricelevel index to deflate the cost to the acquisition year or estimated acquisition year
As the government constructs or acquires additional capital assets each period including infrastructure

assets they are capitalized and reported at historical cost

In fiscal year 2003 the City implemented GASB 34 and elected to delay retroactive reporting of

governmental infrastructure assets until fiscal year 2007 with the exception of airport infrastructure which

is included in the beginning balances Thus during fiscal year 2003 through 2006 the City capitalized
only the major infrastructure networks completed since the implementation of GASB 34 During fiscal

year 2007 the City completed a valuation of both land and infrastructure and all assets are being
reported Beginning balances for land buildings and infrastructure have been increased 153193
407796 and 30474076 respectively with related accumulated depreciation being increased by
13119107

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially
extend assets lives are not capitalized Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized
as projects are constructed Property plant and equipment of the primary government as well as the

component units are depreciated using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives
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Assets Years

Buildings New structure 40

Buildings Used structure 20

Building improvements 720

Improvements Other than Buildings 1020

Machinery and Equipment 510

Vehicles 520

Infrastructure 2050

6 Compensated absences

City employees are entitled to certain compensated absences based on their length of employment in

accordance with official policy adopted by the City council Vacation pay is accrued when incurred in the

governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements The liability for these amounts is recorded as

a liability of the funds There is no liability for unpaid accumulated sick leave since the City does not pay

any amounts when employees separate from service

7 Longterm obligations

In the governmentwide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements

longterm debt and other longterm obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable governmental
activities businesstype activities or proprietary fund type statement of net assets Bond premiums and

discounts as well as issuance costs are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the

effective interest method Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount

Bond issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt

In the fund financial statements governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts as

well as bond issuance costs during the current period The face amount of debt issued is reported as

other financing sources Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources

while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses Issuance costs whether or not

withheld from the actual debt proceeds received are reported as debt service expenditures

8 Fundequity
In the fund financial statements governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that

are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use for a specific
purpose Designations of fund balance represent tentative management plans that are subject to change

9 Post Closure Care Cost

The Citys Sanitation Enterprise Fund adopted Governmental Accounting Standards Board GASB
Statement No 18 Accounting for Municipal Solid Waste Landfill Closure and Post Closure Costs as of

October 1 1993 This statement requires that closure and post closure care costs that are incurred on or

after the landfill stops accepting waste be recognized as expense during the period that waste is

accepted

The City stopped accepting waste at its landfill in November 1990 State and federal laws and

regulations require the City to place a final cover on the site and perform maintenance and monitoring
functions at the site for five years after closure The City estimates post closure costs of 140000 and

has reported that amount as a liability at September 30 2007 If additional post closure care

requirements are determined due to changes in technology or applicable laws or regulations the estimate

of post closure care costs may change

The City operates a waste transfer station for which it has demonstrated financial assurance of59394

by meeting the financial assurance test Estimated closure cost is 15000
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70 Proprietary Fund Capitalized Cost

During the year the enterprise funds perform various jobs which are ultimately capitalized The financial

statement line item Capitalized CostsContra removes the salaries and vehicle expenses from the

operating statement allowing the costs to be capitalized

11 Postemployment benefits

The City provides the availability ofpostretirement health care for certain retirees Retirees and covered

spouses whose sum of age and years of service was equal to or greater than 75 at the time of retirement

may purchase group health until they and their covered spouses reach Medicare eligibility Currently

eight retirees meet those eligibility requirements and have elected to receive this benefit The retiree

pays the entire premium for group health coverage and claims are paid through the selfinsured medical

fund

Employees who retire because of a disability may qualify for life insurance and long term disability
benefits until reaching age 65 or the end of the disability eligibility whichever comes first Premiums for

qualifying retirees are waived and there is no further cost to the City or the retiree Currently one retiree

qualifies for the long term disability benefit

12 Implementation ofAccounting Standards

For fiscal year 2007 the City implemented GASB Statement No 44 Economic Condition Reporting The

Statistical Section an amendment of NCGA Statement 1 GASB 44 GASB 44 amends guidance
related to the preparation of the statistical section This statement improves the understandability and

usefulness of statistical section information by addressing the comparability problems that have

developed in practice and by adding information from the new financial reporting model for state and local

governments required by GASB statement No 34 GASB 44 establishes the objective of the statistical

section and the five categories of information it contains financial trends revenue capacity debt

capacity demographic and economic information and operating information The statistical section

tables are prepared in accordance with this statement and can be found in the statistical section

II Stewardship compliance and accountability

A Budgetary information

The budget process of the City complies with the Texas Uniform Budget Law Annual operating budgets
are adopted each fiscal year through passage of an annual budget ordinance The City Manager as

chief executive officer has ultimate responsibility for the budget The City Manager formulates the

budget goals for the City under the direction of the City Council

The departmental budget is the basic unit of measurement for the Citysbudget Five director positions

report to the City Manager and oversee the individual departmental budgets within their area of

responsibility These positions include the Director of Public Works Director of Public Utilities Director of

Finance Chief of Police and Fire Chief

7 Basis ofaccounting

All budgets are prepared and adopted on a basis consistent with generally accepted accounting principles
which is the same basis of accounting used for financial reporting in these financial statements

38



2 Budgeted funds

Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for all governmental fund types except the following

a Budgets for certain grants established as special revenue funds which are created pursuant to the

terms of the related grant documents

b Budgets for funds set up to receive special donations or assessments for specific purposes which

are established as special revenue funds

c Budgets for certain major capital improvements that are set up as capital projects funds Annual

budgets are not adopted because these projects span more than one fiscal year

For the year ended September 30 2007 annual appropriated budgets were adopted by passage of a

budget ordinance for the General Fund Electric Fund Gas Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Sanitation

Fund and the Debt Service Fund Non major governmental funds for which budgets were adopted
include the HotelMotel Occupancy Tax Fund Airport Capital Improvements Fund Parks Capital
Improvements Fund Main Street Programs and Municipal Court Special Revenue Fund All annual

budget appropriations lapse at the end of the fiscal year

The bylaws of the Brenham Community Development Corporation require that an annual budget be

prepared by the corporationsboard and approved by City council

3 Legal level ofcontrol

The legal level of budgetary control is the departmental budget therefore expenditures may not legally
exceed budget appropriations at the department level Each director with approval of the City Manager
may reclassify items within a departmental budget without approval of the City Council however to

increase the total appropriations of a department requires a budget amendment enacted by City
ordinance

4 Budget amendments

The budget is originally enacted by ordinance therefore any amendments to the budget must also be

made by ordinance The initial step in amending the budget is to present the proposed amendments and

the justification thereof during a work session of a meeting of the City Council The proposed ordinance

amending the budget is then presented during a formal session at two subsequent meetings of the

Council

5 Encumbrances

Encumbrance accounting is asystem under which purchase orders contracts and other commitments for

the expenditure of funds are recorded in order to reserve that portion of the applicable appropriation
Encumbrances are reported as reservations of fund balances since they do not constitute expenditures or

liabilities The City does not employ encumbrance accounting as it feels its current system is adequate to

assure effective budgetary control and accountability and to facilitate effective cash planning and control

B Compliance with finance related legal and contractual provisions

The City had no material violations of finance related legal and contractual provisions

C Deficit fund balances or net asset balances

No fund had adeficit fund balance at year end
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D Excess ofexpenditures overappropriations

For fiscal year end September 30 2007 all expenditures of the General Fund were within appropriations

III Detailed notes on all funds

A Deposits and investments

As of September 30 2007 the government had the following investments

Less than 1

Investment Type Rating Fair Value Yr 1 2 2 3 3 5

USFederal Agency Notes and

bonds Component unit AAA 250078 250078

USFederal Agency Notes and bonds AAA 884 719 499719 385000

US Treasury Notes AAA 538508 538508

Totalprimarygovernment 1423227 1038227 385000

The City had an investment in a State Money Pool TexPool which had a balance of6317033 which

was included in cash and cash equivalents at September 30 2007 Its fair value approximates carrying
value It had a maturity of less than 60 days and was rated AAAm by Standard PoorsAuthorized

investments for TexPool funds include government securities repurchase and reverse repurchase
agreements certificates of deposit money market mutual funds and commercial paper

The City also had an investment in TexSTAR a public funds investment pool which had a balance of

12479307 and was included in cash and cash equivalents at September 30 2007 Its fair value

approximates carrying value It had a maturity of less than 60 days and was rated AAAm by Standard

and PoorsAuthorized investments for TexSTAR funds include government securities repurchase and

reverse repurchase agreements and money market mutual funds

Interest rate risk In accordance with its investment policy the City manages its exposure to declines in

fair values by concentrating its investment portfolio in shorter term securities

Credit risk Generally the Citysinvesting activities are managed under the custody of the Citys finance

director Investing is performed in accordance with the investment policies adopted by the city council

complying with state statutes and the City charter

Concentration of credit risk The governmentsinvestment policy limits investments to avoid over

concentration in investments from a specific insurer or business sector

Custodial credit riskdeposits In the case of deposits this is the risk that in the event of a bank failure
the governmentsdeposits may not be returned to it Its the policy of the City to require full

collateralization of all City funds on deposit with a depository bank

At year end the governmentscarrying amount of deposits for the primary government and BCDC

component unit was 645811 and the bank balances totaled 1233426 Of the bank balances

131063 was covered by federal depository insurance Of the remaining balance1102363 was

collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institutionstrust department or agent in the

governmentsname

B Receivables Account

Accounts receivable as of year end for the governmentsindividual major funds and nonmajor internal

service and proprietary funds in the aggregate including the applicable allowances for uncollectible

accounts are as follows

40



Governmental Funds
Other

General Governmental
Fund Funds Total

Interest 2589 2589
Accounts 238321 21 238342

Assessments 134281 134281
375191 21 375212

Less Allowance for

Uncollectibles 4000 4000
Accounts Receivable Net 371191 21 371212

Proorietarv Funds
Electric Sanitation

Fund Gas Fund Water Fund Sewer Fund Fund Total

Interest 6341 6341

Accounts 2603761 320775 392855 445280 214118 3976789
Assessments

2610102 320775 392855 445280 214118 3983129
Less Allowance for

Uncollectibles 35000 5000 20000 18000 5000 83000
Accounts Receivable Net 2575102 315775 372855 427280 209118 3900129

Internal Service Fund
Total

Interest 115
Accounts 170039

Assessments
170154

Less Allowance for
Uncollectibles

Accounts Receivable Net 170154

Governmental funds report deferred revenue in connection with receivables for revenues that are not

considered to be available to liquidate liabilities of the current period Governmental funds also defer

revenue recognition in connection with resources that have been received but not yet earned At the end

of the current fiscal year the various components of deferred revenue and unearned revenue reported in

the governmental funds were as follows

Unavailable Unearned Total

Delinquent property taxes receivable General
Delinquent property taxes receivable Debt Svc
Lien assessments and pending seizures General
Receivable from Washington County
Grantdrawdowns received but not earned

Total deferredunearned revenue governmental funds

107484 107484
56663 56663
255181 255181
140635 140635

25639 25639

559963 25639 585602

Balances not expected to be collected within one year 362801 362801
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C Receivables Property Taxes

The following information relates to property taxes receivable for the year ended September 30 2007

Original Certified Tax Roll 797156826
Approved Rate Per 100 Valuation 0 5063

Original Levy 4036005

Supplements 58457

Adjusted Levy 4094462

Collections on Current Tax Roll 4020713
Total CollectionsRefundsAdjustments 4089261

Property Taxes Receivable 164147

D Notes Receivable

Notes receivable at September 30 2007 consisted of the following

Governmental Activities General Fund

Various notes receivable owed to the City of Brenham by third parties
fully secured by real estate 9500

Businesstype Activities ElectricFund

Note receivable from component unit Brenham Community
Development Corporation in a sum not to exceed2500000
payable on demand or at the expiration of one year whichever is later
interest payable monthly at 55 unsecured 601683

E Capital assets

Capital asset activity for the year ended September 30 2007 was as follows

Beginning Ending
Governmental Activities Balance 11 Increases Decreases Balance

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land 1797052 307970 2105022
Construction in Progress 299204 1030072 253806 1075470

Total Not Being Depreciated 2096256 1338042 253806 3180492

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings 16009240 318789 307970 16020059

Improvements Other Than Buildings 10451 423 329382 23670 10757 135

Furniture Fixtures and Equipment 2835957 308276 1635024 1509209

Machinery 130869 130869
Vehicles 4740007 1782797 619578 5903226

Infrastructure 37936788 37936788

Total Being Depreciated 71973415 2870113 2586242 72257286

Less Impairment 677 397 677 397

Less Accumulated Depreciation 27750885 2421130 2181714 27990301

Total Being Depreciated Net 43545133 448983 404528 43589588

Capital Assets Net 45641389 1787025 658334 46770080

1 As restated see note IV F
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BusinesstvoeActivities

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land

Construction in Progress
Total Not Being Depreciated

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings
Improvements Other Than Buildings

Furniture Fixtures and Equipment
Vehicles

Infrastructure

Total Being Depreciated
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Being Depreciated Net

Capital Assets Net

Beginning Ending
Balance n r Decreases Balance

1399554 618 33606 1366566

31238 204332 31238 204332

1430792 204950 64844 1570898

598234 25108 573126

29242693 4253 390511 28856435

1286215 65913 259189 1092939

2527 467 186262 7 006 2706723
41686995 86825 11177 41762643
75341604 343253 692991 74991866

28534515 2014516 533055 30015976

46807089 1671263 159936 44975890

48237881 1466313 224780 46546788

Depreciation expense was charged to functionprograms of the primary government as follows

Governmental Activities

Culture and Recreation

General Government

Health and Welfare

Highways and Streets

Public Safety
Total Governmental Activities

BusinesstypeActivities

Electric

Gas

Water

Sewer

Sanitation

Total Businesstype Activities

599548

464704
9 668

1093840
253370

2421130

388849
182367

560343

804288
78669

2014516

As of September 30 2007 capital assets of the component unit consist of land not being depreciated
with a balance of 739430 The Construction in Progress has a balance of25935 which is engineering
for wastewater system improvements

F Contractual commitments

The City has entered into the following longterm contracts with major suppliers to ensure availability in

future years

A joint gas purchase contract to purchase natural gas at a price equal to an agreed index less a

discount under a balancing and supply agreement The contract will expire in 2026 Also a

contract with a supplier to provide natural gas at a rate based on inside FERC Gas Market report
index plus 0 35 per MMBTU This contract will expire November 1 2010 For the year ending
September 30 20073987901 was paid under these contracts

A contract with a supplier to provide the Cityscurrent and future water supply The contract will

expire in 2033 The amount paid under this contract for the year ending September 30 2007 was

193168

A contract with a supplier to provide electric power and energy expiring June 25 2016
renewable for successive twentyfive year periods Contract rates are established by the

supplierswholesale power rate tariff The amount paid under this contract for the year ending
September 30 2007 was17309730
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A contract with a landfill in Austin for solid waste disposal expiring May 1 2009 and automatically
renews for an additional two year term The amount paid under this contract for the year ending
September 30 2007 was218870

The City has active construction projects in the 2006 Capital Projects Fund for the year ending
September 30 2007 related to the new public safety facility

Remaining
Project SpenttoDate Commitment

Architect 114700 255300

Project Management 49181 91819
Construction Manager 18000

163881 365119

G Interfund receivables payables and transfers

Interfund receivables and payables represent money that is transferred among the various funds for cash

flow purposes throughout the year At September 30 2007 the balances were as follows

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount

General Fund Electric Fund 95215
Other GovtIFunds 11438

Parks Special Revenue Other GovtIFunds 104768

The governmentwide statement of activities eliminates transfers as reported within the segregated
governmental and businesstype activities columns Only transfers between the two columns appear in

this statement as internal balances

Amounts transferred on the fund basis include debt service payments City matching revenues for grants
reported as capital projects and investment income During 2007 the City transferred 175000 of

unspent proceeds from the 2002 Certificates of Obligations included in Other Governmental Funds from

the governmental activities to the businesstype activities This is reflected in Note H Longterm debt as

a reallocation The City also made aonetime transfer of2399099 from the Electric Fund to the Sewer

Fund as a final settlement of an interfund receivable payable between these funds

The following schedule reports transfers and payments within the reporting entity as of September 30
2007

Transfers From

Govemmental Activities

Major Funds

General

Other GovtI

BusinesstypeActivities

Major Funds

Electric

Gas
Water
Sewer

Total Transfers To

Transfers To

Govemmental Activities

Debt Other Internal

General Service GovtI Service

48500

9845
9845
9845

9845

495373 45977

37912 45623

57000

Business Type
Activities

Net

Transfers

From

Sewer

541350

132035

2399099 2465944

9845
9845

9845

87880 37912 597996 45977 2399099 3168864
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Payments from the Brenham Community Development Corporation BCDC component unit consist of

debt service payments on the Series 98 bonds which were issued in part to fund construction of a

business center and recreational facilities Funding for the construction of these facilities are provided by
a 38cent sales tax collected and administered by the BCDC Additionally the BCDC provides an

operating subsidy to the General Fund to help cover the cost of operating the BlueBell Aquatic Center

During the year BCDC provided funding for parks improvement projects totaling 110000 Specific
projects include Skate Park 10000 Carousel 40000 and Finke Pavilion 60000 The following
schedule shows payments from the component unit for the year ended September 30 2007

Payments From Payments to Total

Payments
Governmental from

Activities

Debt Other

Component Unit General Service GovtI

Brenham Community Development Corp 200000 460877 110000 770877

Total Payments To 200000 460877 110000 770877

H Longterm debt

The following is a summary of longterm debt transactions of the City for the year ended September 30
2007

Balance Refinancing FY07 Balance Due Within

9302006 Reallocation Additions Retirements 93 ne Y Lonc Tenn

Governmental Activities

1998COB General 6130000 400000 5730000 420000 5310000

2001 COB General 4285492 1425357 160817 2699319 166315 2533004

2002COB General 2862750 175000 113547 2574203 117 724 2456479

2006 COB General 9000000 155000 8845000 245000 8600000

2007 GOB Ref General 0 1 524 321 12371 1511950 6873 1505077

22278242 76036 841734 21360472 955912 20404560

Unamort Bond Premium 61847 22047 1717 41517 NA 41517

Unamort Bond Discount 6024 357 5667 NA 5667

Ref Deferred Charges 73 156 3726 69430 NA 69430

Sub Total Bonds Payable 22334065 171239 835934 21326892 955812 20370980

Lease Payable Furniture 123896 39957 83939 41284 42655

Lease Payable Phone Systen General Fund 139155 43388 95767 45532 50235

Chase Equip Lease 288810 52039 236771 54131 182639

Chase New World Lease 417300 82455 334845 78606 256238

Chase VehicleEquipLease 127000 127000 23317 103683

Lse Payable 02 Fire Truck 45 882 45882 0

SubTotal LeasesPayable 597743 544300 263722 878321 242871 635451

Compensated Absences 177880 9223 187103 187103

Total Governmental S 23109687 171239 S 553523 S 1099656 S 22392316 S 1198783 21193533
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Business Type Activities

2001COBWaterlmpr 3376252 1127738 127238 2121277 131587 1969690

2001 GOB Ref Water 3530000 385000 3145000 400000 2745000

2001 COB Sewer Impr 7898256 2631906 296946 4969404 307098 4662306

2002 COB Sewer Impr 5812250 175000 251 453 5735797 262276 5473521

2007 GOB Ref Water 1206038 9788 1 196250 5438 1 190812

2007 GOB Ref Sewer 2 814 642 22842 2791800 12690 2779110

20616758 436036 1093266 19959528 1119089 18840439

Unamort Bond DiscountSewer 12231 725 11507 NA 11507

Unamort BondPnmiumWater 56747 17443 6450 32849 NA 32849

Unamort Bond PremiumSewer 122249 40709 4878 76662 NA 76662

07 Ref DeferredChrgWater 57881 2948 54933 NA 54933

07 Ref DeferredChrgSewer 135082 6881 128201 NA 128201

01 Ref Deferred ChrgWater 214 896 27145 187751 NA 187751

SubTotal Bonds Payable 20568621 184920 1066895 19686646 1119089 18567557

Compensated Absences 180232 2176 178056 178056

Chase Equip Lease 80190 353130 16061 417259 81540 335719

Grinderlse PayableSanit 58197 58197

Reno SetOement Water 25 614 15896 9719 9719

Total Proprietary 20912854 184820 S 353130 S 1159225 E 20291660 S1210348 19081332

Component Unit Governmental Activities

Note PayableBCDCto Cily ElecFund 641 730 40 046 601683 42095 559588

Total Governmental BCDC 641 730 S 40 046 601683 S 42095 559588

The annual debt service requirements to maturity for all outstanding debt as of September 30 2007

follows

FISCAL PRIMARY GOVERNMENT

YEAR GENERAL OBLIGATION SETTLEMENT PAYABLE CERTIFICATES OF OBLIGATION TOTAL REQUIREMENTS

ENDNG

930 PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST PRINCIPAL INTEREST

2008 425000 351250 9719 198 1650000 1 422440 2084 719 1 773888

2009 440000 334253 1715000 1358122 2155000 1692375

2010 460000 316655 1825000 1290559 2285000 1607214

2011 475000 298258 1950000 1214967 2425000 1513225

2012 495000 278698 2025000 1134080 2520000 1412778

20132017 1130000 1125432 12470000 4232125 13600000 5357557

20182022 5220000 517 703 7600000 1686488 12820000 2204 191

20232027 3440000 309685 3440000 309685

8645000 3222249 9719 198 32675000 12648466 41329719 15870913
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Debt outstanding at September 30 2007 for the primary government is comprised of the following

9050000 1998 Certificates of Obligation due in annual installments of 375000 5730000
to 640000 through August 15 2018 interest rates38546

165900002001 Combination Tax and Utility System Revenue Certificates of 9790000

Obligation due in annual installments of 185000to1770000 through August 15 2020

interest rates355375

3965000 2001 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of 3145000

80000 to 485000 through August 15 2014 interest rates3045

92450002002 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation due in annual 8310000

installments of 105000 to 700000through August 15 2023 interest rates3047

callable August 15 2012

9000000 2006 Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation due in annual 8845000

installments of 155000 to 740000 through August 15 2026 interest rate3940

55450002007 General Obligation Refunding Bonds due in annual installments of 5500000

25000 to1760000 through August 15 2021 interest rate3990

Settlement agreement dated32697payable to an individual 17000 annually in equal 9719

monthly installments for eleven years discounted at a rate of 6

200000 lease payable dated November 2003 due in annual payments of 44070 83939

Including interest through November 2008 Furniture

249924 lease payable dated October 1 2004 due in annual payments of 54000 95766

Including interest through October 2009 Telephone System

369000 lease payable dated December 28 2005 due in annual payments of 82934 300900

Including interest through December 2010 Street Sweeper Trash Hauler Flat Roller

Dump Truck

4173001ease payable dated January 18 2007 due in annual payments of 92703 334845

Including interest through August 2011 New World Software

480130 lease payable dated August 30 2007 due in annual payments of108700 480130

Including interest through August 2012 FY08 Vehicles and Equipment

Compensated Absences for accrued vacation 365159

42990458
Unamortized Bond Premium 151028
Unamortized Bond Discount 17174
Deferred Charges on Bonds 440315

Debt outstanding for Brenham Community Development Corporation Component Unit at September 30
2007 and annual debt service payments to maturity for the outstanding debt follows

899347 note payable to primary government dated May 21 1998 in a sum

not to exceed2500000 payable in one year or on demand whichever is

later interest payable monthly at 5 5 unsecured note is being amortized

for 20 years through September 30 2018
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FISCAL COMPONENT UNIT

YEAR NOTES PAYABLE

ENDNG

930 PRINCIPAL INTEREST

2008 42096 29128

2009 44249 26974

2010 46513 24711

2011 48893 22331

2012 51394 19829

2013 54023 17200

2014 56787 14436

2015 59693 11531

2016 62747 8477

2017 65957 5267

2018 69331 1892

601683 181776

Prior Year Refundings

In 2001 the City issued3965000 of general obligation refunding bonds to provide resources to

purchase U S government securities that were placed in an irrevocable trust fund for the purpose of

providing for all future debt service payments on3615000 of outstanding Series 1994 bonds maturing
in 2007 and later As a result the refunded bonds are considered to be defeased and the liability has

been removed from longterm debt At September 30 2007 the outstanding principal on the defeased

debt was2960000

Advance Refunding ofDebt

On March 13 2007 the City issued5545000 of general obligation refunding bonds to provide
resources to refund a portion of its Combination Tax and Revenue Certificates of Obligation Series 2001

in advance of their maturities Resources provided were used to purchase federal securities that were

placed in an irrevocable trust for the purpose of generating resources for the redemption on August 15
2011 for certificates maturing 2018 through 2021 As a result the refunded bonds are considered to be

defeased and the liability has been removed from the governmental and businesstype activities columns

of the Statement of Net Assets The reacquisition price exceeded the net carrying value of the old debt

by 247261 This amount is being netted against the new debt and amortized over the remaining life of

the refunded debt which is shorter than the life of the new debt issued This advance refunding was

undertaken to reduce total debt service payments over the next 15 years by 389871 and resulted in an

economic gain of 290788 The amount ofinsubstance defeased debt which remains outstanding at

September 30 2007 as a result of this refunding is5185000

I Capital Leases

The city entered into lease agreements to finance the acquisitions of a telephone system furniture street

department heavy equipment public safety software gas department vehicle sanitation haul trucks and

heavy equipment and residential collection trucks These lease commitments qualify as capital leases

for accounting purposes and therefore have been recorded at the present value of their future minimum

lease payments as of inception date
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The assets acquired through the capital leases are as follows

Asset Class

VehiclesLarge Equipment
Furniture Fixtures Equipment
Less Accumulated Depreciation

Total Net Asset

Governmental

Activities

259827
660705
361896
558636

BusinessType
Activities

80190

11360
68830

The total future minimum lease payments and the net present value of these minimum payments as of

September 30 2007 were as follows

Year Ending Governmental BusinessType
September 30 Activities Activities

2008 278126 99507
2009 278126 99507

2010 187976 99508
2011 191666 92672
2012 28751 79947

Total Minimum Lease Payments 964645 471141

Less Amount Representing Interest 86324 53882
Present Value of Minimum Payments 878321 417259

Amortization expense is included in depreciation expense of the Gas and Sanitation Funds

J Rebatable Arbitrage

As defined in the federal tax code governments are not permitted to reinvest the proceeds oftaxexempt
debt in higher yielding securities The liability to the federal government for any excess earnings is known

as rebatable arbitrage Arbitrage rebate payments must be made to the federal government every five

years and within 60 days of final maturity A rebatable arbitrage liability is recognized in all funds and in

the governmentwide and proprietary fund financial statements when incurred and measurable

The 2006 Capital Projects Fund had a liability for rebatable arbitrage earnings in the amount of127131
at September 30 2007 This amount was netted against interest earnings from investments

K Restricted cash and investments

The balances of the restricted cash and investment accounts in the governmental and business type
activities were as follows
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Governmental

Activities

Capital Projects 8595641
Customer Deposits
Debt Service 324872
HotelMotel Tax 79981
Public Safety Equipment 22231
Revenue bond construction account

Capital Leases 185378
Section 8 Community Development 21483
Workerscompensation and

health insurance account 267247
9496833

L Restricted net assets

Businesstype
Activities

1468611

185692
353130

2007433

The balances of the restricted net asset accounts in the governmental and enterprise funds were as

follows

Governmental Businesstype Component
Activities Activities Total Unit

NET ASSETS
Restricted for Debt Service

Restricted for Economic Development
Restricted for Recreation

Total net assets

IV Other information

A Risk Management

333943 538822 872765
517597

264454

333943 538822 872765 782051

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts theft of damage to and destruction of assets
errors and omissions and natural disasters for which the City assumes part of the risk and participates in

the Texas Municipal League Intergovernmental Risk Pool for the excess over certain deductibles The

City pays an annual premium to the TML Pool in order to receive premium discounts The Pool is

intended to be selfsustaining through member contributions and reinsures through commercial

companies for claims over certain deductibles The Pool returns a portion of contributions to members if

claims and needed reserves are less than contributions received

The City has established a risk management program for medical insurance benefits Premiums are paid
into an internal service fund by all other funds to be used to pay claims administrative costs and to

accumulate reserves for future claims The net assets of these funds are designated for future costs

incurred in these specific programs

Liabilities are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the amount of that loss can be

reasonably estimated To prevent incurring unexpected losses the City has obtained excess insurance

coverage in the event abnormally large claims occur Incurred but not reported claims IBNR in the

amount of 156959 at September 30 2007 are included as liabilities styled selfinsurance claims

payable based upon previous experience with similar claims and information obtained from the excess

carrier Interfund premiums are based upon the insured funds historical claims experience and are

recorded as quasiexternal interfund transactions in the Proprietary Fund statements For the year ended

September 30 2007 the various funds paid into the risk management internal service fund1573705 of

premiums Net assets as of September 30 2007 totaled 377630 Changes in the balances of claims

liabilities for the year ended September 30 are as follows
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Unpaid Claims Beginning of Year

Claims Incurred including IBNR
Payments on Claims

Other net

Unpaid Claims End of Year

B Contingent liabilities

2007 2006

172620 98776
2119927 1574044
2123725 1500200

0 0

168822 172620

2005

145050
999266
1045540

0

98776

The City in 1999 signed a compromise agreement in settlement of a claim for breach of contract to

maintain certain creek drainage As part of the agreement the City is to make payments totaling
147500 from 2000 through 2009 However these payments are contingent upon the claimants

performance of certain conditions Since it cannot be determined if such future performance is

reasonably probable no additional liability for this amount has been accrued Payments for which the City
may be required to pay total 109500 as of September 30 2007

In 2003 the City of Brenham was awarded a 400000 grant from the Office of Rural and Community
Affairs for housing infrastructure assets related to The Overlook of BrenhamPhase One subdivision

project The project was for the development of a subdivision of 50 new residential single family housing
units of which at least 51 will be owned and occupied by low to moderate income persons The City of

Brenham contracted with Brenham Quality Housing LP to act as the developer of the subdivision

Special grant provisions require repayment of expended funds in the event that the agreement is not met

The Cityscontract with the developer requires repayment of contract funds if the developer does not fulfill

its responsibilities and such agreement minimizes the Citys financial exposure

The City participates in a number of federally assisted grant programs These programs are subject to

program compliance audits by the grantors or their representatives Audits for some of these federal

programs for the year ended September 30 2007 and for several prior years have not yet been

conducted Accordingly the Cityscompliance with applicable grant requirements will be established at

some future date The amount if any of expenditures which may be disallowed by the grantor agencies
cannot be determined at this time although the City expects such amounts if any to be immaterial

C Deferred compensation plans and retirement

The City offers its employees a deferred compensation plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue

Code Section 457 The plan available to all City employees permits them to defer a portion of their

salary until future years Participation in the plan is optional The deferred compensation is not available

to employees until termination retirement death or unforeseeable emergency All amounts of

compensation deferred under the plan all property and rights purchased with those amounts and all

income attributable to those amounts property or rights are until paid or made available to the employee
or other beneficiary solely the property and rights of the City subject only to the claims of the Citys
general creditors Participants rights under the plan are equal to those of general creditor of the City in

an amount equal to the fair market value of the deferred account for each participant

It is the opinion of the Cityslegal counsel that the City has no liability for losses under the plan but does

have the duty of due care that would be required of an ordinary prudent investor The City believes that it

is unlikely that it will use the assets to satisfy the claims of general creditors in the future
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1 Plan Description

The City provides pension benefits for all of its fulltime employees through anontraditional joint
contributory hybrid defined benefit plan in the statewide Texas Municipal Retirement System TMRS
one of 821 administered by TMRS an agent multipleemployer public employee retirement system

Benefits depend upon the sum of the employeescontributions to the plan with interest and the City
financed monetary credits with interest At the date the plan began the City granted monetary credits for

service rendered before the plan began of a theoretical amount equal to two times what would have been

contributed by the employee with interest prior to establishment of the plan Monetary credits for service

since the plan began are a percentage 100 150 or 200 of the employees accumulated

contributions In addition the City can grant as often as annually another type of monetary credit

referred to as an updated service credit which is a theoretical amount which when added to the

employeesaccumulated contributions and the monetary credits for service since the plan began would

be the total monetary credits and employee contributions accumulated with interest if the current

employee contribution rate and the City matching percent had always been in existence and if the

employeessalary had always been the average of his salary in the last three years that are one year

before the effective date At retirement the benefit is calculated as if the sum of the employees
accumulated contributions with interest and the employerfinanced monetary credits with interest were

used to purchase an annuity

The plan provisions are adopted by the governing body of the City within the options available in the

state statutes governing TMRS and within the actuarial constraints also in the statutes The contribution

rate for the employees is 5 and the City matching ratio is currently 2 to 1 Members can retire at ages

60 and above with 5 or more years of service or with 20 years of service regardless of age A member is

vested after 5 years

2 Contributions

Under the state law governing TMRS the actuary annually determines the City contribution rate This

rate consists of the normal cost contribution rate and the prior service contribution rate both of which are

calculated to be a level percent of payroll from year to year The normal cost contribution rate finances

the currently accruing monetary credits due to City matching percent which are the obligation of the City
as of an employeesretirement date not at the time the employeescontributions are made

The normal cost contribution rate is the actuarially determined percent of payroll necessary to satisfy the

obligation of the City to each employee at the time hisher retirement becomes effective The prior
service contribution rate amortizes the unfunded overtunded actuarial liability asset over the remainder

of the plans25year amortization period The unit credit actuarial cost method is used for determining
the City contribution rate Both the employees and the City make contributions monthly Since the City
needs to know its contribution rate in advance for budgetary purposes there is aoneyear delay between

the actuarial valuation that is the basis for the rate and the calendar year when the rate goes into effect

ie December 31 2006 valuation is effective for rates beginning January 2008

Actuarial Assumptions

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Remaining Amortization Period

Asset Valuation Method

Investment Rate of Return

Projected Salary Increases

Includes Inflation At

Cost of Living Adjustments

Unit Credit
Level Percent of Payroll
25 Years Open Period

Amortized Cost

7
None

3 5
None
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3 Schedule of Actuarial Liabilities and Funding Progress

Actuarial Valuation Date

Actuarial Value of Assets

Actuarial Accrued Liability

Percentage Funded

Unfunded Overfunded Actuarial

Accrued Liability UAAL

Annual Covered Payroll

UAAL as a Percentage of Covered

Payroll

Net Pension Obligation NPO

Beginning of Period

Annual Pension Cost

Annual Required Contribution ARC

Interest on NPO

Adjustment to the ARC

Contributions Made

Increase in NPO

123106 123105 123104 123103 123102

16432198 15889979 14815141 13582509 11933120

21170662 20112571 17671154 16434774 14298870

776 79 838 826 835

4738464 4222592

7489073 7113531

633 594

704369 552841

2856013 2852265 2365750

7716375 7 335905 7098358

370 389 333

560752 543826 524132

704369 552841 560752 543826 524132

704369 552841 560752 543826 524132

NPO at the end of the period

D Subsequent Events

On October 31 2007 the City purchased a parcel of land in the Southwest Industrial Park at FM 389 and

Longwood Drive in Brenham This 4 5 acre site was purchased from the Economic Development
Foundation of Brenham at a total cost of64087 and will be the location of the Citys new public safety
facility The construction of this facility is anticipated to begin in the spring of 2008 with final completion
estimated for early 2009

A joint meeting of the City and the County was held on February 12 2008 to discuss and approve an

interlocal agreement to share costs related to the US 290 PassThrough Financing Project Under this

agreement the City and County are responsible for 50 each of the annual debt service for the 15
million required local project contribution NET of the annual payment to the City from TxDOT The

bonds are anticipated to be issued in 2010 or later with the repayments from TxDOT occurring during the

years 2012 through 2017 The estimated annual shortfall of approximately 500000 per year is the

combined responsibility for both the City and the County for a period of 9 years The repayment
schedule is based on TxDOTs minimum required payment under the contract The payment will be

almost3 million annually based on the current level of traffic on US 290

In October2007 the City and Brenham Housing Authority entered in to an interlocal agreement whereby
Brenham Housing Authority will manage and administer the Section 8 Housing Program This program

was previously administered by Brazos Valley Council of Governments
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E Future Implementation of New Accounting Principles

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board issued Statement No 45 Accounting and Financial

Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other than Pension Plans GASB 45 which will

be effective for the City in fiscal year 2008 This statement establishes uniform financial reporting
standards for postemployment benefit other than pension plans The effect of this statement cannot be

determined at this time

F Restatements

The net assets of the Citysgovernmental activities businesstype activities General Fund Electric Fund
Water Fund and Sewer Fund as previously reported as of September 30 2006 have been restated to

give effect to the following

1 Land Infrastructure Buildings

During fiscal year 2007 the City completed a valuation of land infrastructure and buildings in

connection with the final implementation of GASB 34 The beginning balances of capital assets
accumulated depreciation total assets and net assets reported in the governmentwide financial

statements have been restated to include land and infrastructure not previously reported

Restated

Beginning Beginning

Governmental Activities Balance Restatements Balance

Infrastructure restatement

Capital Assets Not Being Depreciated
Land 1643859 153193 1797052

Construction in Progress 299204 299204

Total Not Being Depreciated 1943063 153193 2096256

Capital Assets Being Depreciated
Buildings 15601444 407796 16009240

Improvements Other Than Buildings 10451423 10451423

Furniture Fixtures and Equipment 2835957 2835957

Machinery
Vehicles 4740007 4740007

Infrastructure 7462712 30474076 37936788

Total Being Depreciated 41091543 30881872 71973415

Less Impairment 677397 677397

Less Accumulated Depreciation 14631778 13119107 27750885
Total Being Depreciated Net 25782368 17762765 43545133

Capital Assets Net 27725431 17915958 45641389

Since these restatements relate to various prior years the effect of the restatement on the September
30 2006 change in net assets could not be determined

2 Deferred Revenue

The Citys General Fund receives franchise tax revenue in lieu of property taxes from certain

television cable companies and utility providers In the prior year accrued franchise taxes and

deferred revenue of 127197 were not recorded In the governmentwide financial statement
revenue deferred under modified accrual is recognized as revenue under full accrual As such

beginning net assets have been increased by this amount

3 Prepaid Expense

The beginning net assets are being restated as a result of a correction to the previously reported
value of Electric Fund operating expenses During the year ending September 30 2007 the City
identified that a portion of the monthly LCRA source cost billings should have been accounted for as

an increase in prepaid expense rather than as an expense Each month a portion of the Citys
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monthly LCRA billing is deposited into an Energy Services Account ESA which is aprepaid expense

account administered by LCRA The balance of the Citys ESA at October 1 2006 was113453
An adjustment was made to set up this amount as a prepaid expense and restate beginning fund

balance in the Electric Fund

A table depicting these changes to the fund level financial statements follows

Electric Fund

Fund BalanceNetassets as

previously reported 14534115
3 Prepaid Expense 113453

Beginning fund balanceNet

assets as restated 14647568

A table depicting these changes to the governmentwide financial statements follows

Governmental BusinessType
Activities Activities Total

Beginning fund balanceNet

assets as originally reported 17795761 34913176 52708937

1 Land Infrastructure 17915958 17915958
Buildings

2 Deferred Revenue 127197 127197

3 Prepaid Expense 113453 113453

Beginning Net assets as

restated 35838916 35026629 70865545

The effect of these changes on operations for the year ending September 30 2006 is as follows

Net Change on fund balanceNetassets

as previously reported
2 Deferred Revenue

3 Prepaid Expense
Net Change on Fund BalanceNet

assets as restated

General Electric

Fund Fund

441270 707670

26220

441270 733890
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special Revenue Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources

that are restricted to expenditures for specific purposes

HotelMotel Fund

This fund is used to account fora 7occupancy tax assessed on hotel and motel occupants that is

restricted to various functions and organizations that develop and promote tourism

Community Development Section 8Grant

This fund is used to account for Federal grant revenues provided through the Department of Housing and

Urban Development for the development of environmental and economic opportunities principally for

persons of low and moderate income

Main StreetCommunity Development Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for Main Street programs and activities

Emergency Management Grants Fund

This fund is used to account for grant revenues specifically designated for Emergency Management
purposes

Police Department Grants Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for Police programs and activities

MotorcyclePD Eauipment Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for police motorcycle and other

equipment

Police Training Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for police training

PD Criminal Law Enforcement Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for police department criminal law

enforcement

Donations Fund

This fund is used to account for donations designated for specific purposes or activities

Courts TechnologySecurity Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues restricted for providing security services technology and

staffing for the Municipal Court

Fire Department Grants Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for fire department activities or

equipment

Parks Special Revenue Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for parks projects

US 290 Pass Thru Finance Fund

This fund is used to account for revenues specifically designated for the US 290 Pass Thru project
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Capital Projects Funds

Capital Projects Funds are used to account for financial resources used for the

acquisition and construction of capital facilities other than those financed by proprietary
funds and trust funds

Airport Capital Improvement Fund

This fund is used to account for grant proceeds used for airport hanger construction and the runway

extension project

2002 Capital Projects Fund

This fund is used to account for proceeds and expenditures for the approved 2002 Bond projects

Texas Capital Vulcan St Fund

This fund is used to account for grant proceeds used for the Vulcan Street project

Capital Leases Fund

This fund is use to account for capital lease proceeds and capital lease expenditures
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City of Brenham

Combining Balance Sheet

Other Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Nonmajor

Assets

Cash and Equivalents
Receivables Net

Occupancy Tax

Accounts
Intertund Receivables
Due from Other Governments
Other Current Assets
Restricted Cash
Restricted Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts Payable Other Current

Interfund Payables
Deferred Revenue

Total Liabilities

Fund Balances
Unreserved reported in

Capital Projects

Special Revenue Funds

Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Special Capital Total Other

Revenue Projects Governmental

Funds Funds Funds

453785 130431 584216

44057 44057

21 21

104768 104768
126515 126515

22531 22531
123696 671356 795052

185378 185378

852842 1009696 1862538

21710 60388 82098

104768 5994 110762

25639 25639
152117 66382 218499

943314 943314

700725 700725

700725 943314 1644039

852842 1009696 1862538
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City of Brenham

Combining Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Other Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Nonmajor

Special Capital Total Other

Revenue Projects Governmental
Funds Funds Funds

Revenues

Taxes 371468 371468

Intergovernmental 699936 722052 1421988

Charges for Services 37258 37258

Investment income 6883 23614 30497

Payment from Component Unit 110000 110000

Contributions and Donations 124583 124583
Miscellaneous 11224 11834 23058

Total revenues 1361352 757500 2118852

Expenditures
Current

Culture and Recreation 439365 439365

General Government 24397 114165 138562

Health and Welfare 279770 279 770

Public Safety 299104 299104

Capital Outlay 115094 1451845 1566939

Total expenditures 1157730 1566010 2723740

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

Over Under Expenditures 203622 808510 604888

Other Financing Sources Uses
Transfers In 366163 231832 597995

Transfers Out 68500 238534 307034

Proceeds from Capital Lease 544300 544300

Total other financing sources and

uses 297663 537598 835261

Net change in Fund Balances 501285 270912 230373

Fund balances beginning 199440 1214226 1413666

Fund balances ending 700725 943314 1644039

61



City of Brenham

Combining Balance Sheet
Other Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds

For theYear Ended September 30 2007

Community Main Streefl Emergency PoliceDept Motorcycle Police

HotellMotel Development CommDev Mgmt Grants Grants PD Equipment Training

Tax Fund Sec 8 Fund Fund Fund Fand Feund Fund

Assets

Cash and Equivalents 14 448 46723 25631 13573 8404

Receivables Net
Occupancy Tax 44057

Accounts 21

Interfund Receivables

Due from Other Governments 1000 124278 1237

Restricted Cash 78981 21483

TotalAssets 138486 21504 46723 26631 124278 14810 8404

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities

Accounts Payable 8 Other Curtent 1215 819 19510

Intertund Payables 104 768

Deferced Revenue 20289

Total Liabilities 21504 619 124278

Fund Balances
Unreserved reported in

Special Revenue Funds 138486 46104 26631 14810 8404

Total Fund Balances 138486 46104 26631 14810 8404

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 138486 21504 46723 26631 124278 14810 8404
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City of Brenham

Combining Balance Sheet

Other Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

PD Crim Law Courts FireDept Parks Special US 290 Pass Total Special

Enforcement Donations TechSecurity Grants Revenue Thru Finance Revenue Funds

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Assets

Cash and Equivalents 195 8786 73472 112553 150000 453785

Receivables Net 44057
Occupancy Tax

21
Accounts

104768 104768
Intertund Receivables 126515
Due from Other Governments 123 696

Restricted Cash 22232
42722 786 734728 217321 150000 852842

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances
Liabilities

Accounts Payable 8 Other Current 366 21 710

104768
Intertund Payables 63925

Deferred Revenue 5350
117152

Total Liabilities 5350 366

Fund Balances
Unreserved reported in

Special Revenue Funds 17077 8786 73106 217321 150000 700725

Total Fund Balances 17077 8786 73108 217321 150000 700725

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances 22427 8786 73472 217321 150000 852842
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City of Brenham

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Other Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Community Main StreeU Emergency PoliceDept Motorcycle Police

NotelMotel Development Comm Dev Mgmt Grants Grants PD Equipment Training

Tax Fund Sec8Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund

Revenues

Taxes 371 468

Intergovernmental 336260 17183 126165 1238 2708

Charges for Services
63

Investmentlncome 6070

Payment from Component Unit

Contributions and Donations 12404

Miscellaneous 1249

Total revenues 377538 336260 13653 17 183 126165 1238 2771

Expenditures
Currenk

Culture and Recreation 357772 76493

General Government

Health and Welfare 279770
165126 1633

PublicSafety

Capital Outlay
Total expenditures 357772 279770

1097
77590 126165 1633

T

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

OverUnder Expenditures 19766 5649000 63937 17 183 395 2771

Other Financing SourcesUses

Transfers In 92000 15205

Transfers Out 68500
Total other financing sources

15 205
anduses 68500 92000

Net change in Fund Balances 48734 56490 28063 17 183 14810 2771

Fund balances beginning 187220 56490 18041 9448 5633

Fund balances ending 138486 46104 26631 14810 8404
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City of Brenham

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances

Other Governmental Funds Special Revenue Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

PD Crim Law Courts Fire Dept Parks Special US 290 Pass Total Special

Enforcement Donations TechSecurity Grants Revenue Thru Finance Revenue

Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

Revenues

Taxes
371468

Intergovernmental 191382 25000 699936

Charges for Services 37258 37258

Investment Income 750 6883

Payment from Component Unit 110000 110000

Contributions and Donations 14723 10073 87383 124583

Miscellaneous 9975 11224

Total revenues 10725 14723 37258 201 455 222383 1361352

Expenditures
Current

1005 439365
Culture and Recreation

39724
General Government 6287 18110

279770
Health and Welfare

306171 299104
PublicSafety

Capital Outlay 30149 83848 115094

Total expenditures 6287 18110 201455 88948 1157730

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

OverUnderExpenditures 10725 8436 19148 133435 203622

Other Financing SourcesUses

Transfers In 53958 55000 150000 366163

Transfers Out
68500

Total other financing sources

0 95853 55000 150000 297663
anduses

Net change in Fund Balances 10725 8436 73106 188435 150000 501285

Fund balances beginning 6352 350 28886 199440

Fund balances ending 17077 8786 73106 217321 150000 700725
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Combining Balance Sheet

Other Governmental Funds Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Assets

Cash and Equivalents
Other Current Assets

Restricted Cash
Restricted Investments

Total Assets

Liabilities and Fund Balances

Liabilities
Accounts Payable Other Current

Intertund Payables
Total Liabilities

Fund Balances

Unreserved reported in

Capital Projects
Total Fund Balances

Total Liabilities and Fund Balances

Airport 2002 Capital Texas Capital Capital Total Nonmajor

Capital Impr Projects Vulcan St Leases Capital Projects

Fund Fund Fund Fund Funds

130431 130431

22531 22531

671356 671356

185378 185378

152962 671356 185378 1009696

15020 45368 60388

5994 5994

15020 51362 66382

137942 619994 185378 943314

137942 619994 185378 943314

152962 671356 185378 1009696
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City of Brenham

Statement of Revenues Expenditures and Changes inFund Balances

Other Governmental Funds Nonmajor Capital Projects Funds

For the Year Ended September 30 2007

Revenues

Intergovernmental
Investment Income

Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General Government

Capital Outlay
Total expenditures

Excess Deficiency of Revenues

Over Under Expenditures

Other Financing Sources Uses

Transfers In

Transfers Out

Proceeds from Capital Lease

Total other financing sources and

uses

Net change in Fund Balances

Fund balances beginning
Fund balances ending

Airport 2002 Capital Texas Capital
Capital Impr Projects Vulcan St

Fund Fund Fund

722052
18075
11834

722052 29909

Capital Total Nonmajor

Leases Capital Projects
Fund Funds

722052
5539 23614

11834

5539 757500

114165 114 165

888483 110563 25623 427176 1451845

888483 224728 25623 427176 1566010

166431 194819 25623 421637 808510

145625 60584 25623 231832

200622 37912 238534
544300 544300

145625 140038 25623 506388 537598

20806 334857 84751 270912

158748 954851 100627 1214226

137942 619994 185378 943314
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THE CITY OF BRENHAM

REPORTS FOR
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Reports for Management

The reports for management provide additional detailed information about the

Citys expenses revenues rates and customers

GovernmentwideExpenses by Function

GovernmentwideRevenues

General Governmental Expenditures by Function

Reconciliation ofProperty Tax Receivable

Revenues by Source Governmental Funds

Ratio ofAnnual Debt Service Expenditures for General Obligation Bonded Debt to

General Governmental Expenditures

Property Value and Construction

Revenue by Source Business Type Activities

Electric Customers Consumption and Sales

Gas Customers Consumption and Sales

Electric Rates

Gas Rates

Ten Largest Electric Customers

Ten Largest Gas Customers

The Water System Utility Billing Statistics

The Sewer System Utility Billing Statistics

The Sanitation System Utility Billing Statistics
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

GOVERNMENTWIDE EXPENSES BY FUNCTION
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Economic Interest on

Fiscal General Highways and Health and Develop Culture and Longterm
Year Government Public Safety Streets Welfare ment Recreation Debt Electric Gas Water Sewer Sanitation

2003 1099474 4255750 1548837 554797 269685 2897340 696557 18431275 5023642 2439366 2559845 1689275
2004 1071441 4399037 1544154 569459 3417 2802023 758226 19621793 4537389 2557248 2656350 2007536
2005 1930824 4174264 1569656 218987 2903509 743699 20843491 5225571 2732815 2944784 2062243
2006 1993032 4719613 1637165 624350 3047778 709650 25991891 6027066 3162284 3544654 2309317
2007 1888188 5028102 2279505 580118 3264409 991486 23342221 5646666 3164010 3559574 2331316

The City of Brenham first applied GASB Statement No 34 in fiscal year 2003 therefore government wide financial information for years prior to fiscal year 2003 is

not available
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

GOVERNMENTWIDEREVENUES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

PROGRAM REVENUES GENERAL REVENUES

GainLoss Payments
Operating Capital Unrestricted on Sale of from

Fiscal Charges for Grants and Grants and Grants and Investment Miscell Capital Component
Year Services Contributions Contributions Taxes Contributions Earnings aneous Assets Unit Total

2003 30735343 999126 542589 7856433 28348 425151 134751 51100 675704 41346345
2004 32265188 980398 2192208 8254456 16624 411498 166138 21536 622061 44930107
2005 35236390 933751 704478 8962713 370280 142374 57173 661407 46954220
2006 42045906 678830 1130716 9752858 574417 139478 15490 661417 54999112
2007 39131718 915090 1081668 11200672 1049411 323318 129116 770877 54343638

The City of Brenham first applied GASB Statement No 34 in fiscal year 2003 therefore government wide financial information

for years prior to fiscal year 2003 is not available



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES BY FUNCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Highways Health

Fiscal General Public and and Culture Economic Debt Capital

Year Government Safety Streets Welfare Recreation Development Service Outlay Totals

V
N

1998 615591 3255856 1572823 362605 860238 512486 25320 7204919

1999 705394 3253276 1283000 423424 1096587 1419448 3788039 11969168

2000 780017 3522975 1148165 481397 1399065 1298834 5719752 14350205

2001 750684 3864203 1073128 434823 1988445 1296710 2847592 12255585

2002 901474 4229819 1857357 613154 2590967 1598452 2795571 14586794

2003 980100 4021661 1032007 556746 2366423 275531 1627423 3198692 14058583

2004 974771 4164948 1070642 571160 2267690 3417 1663252 4780081 15495961

2005 1560873 4053844 1046654 214873 2374455 1762731 1763551 12776981

2006 1270288 4179268 1085298 614794 2467861 1875109 2475907 13968525

2007 1383100 4634054 1153897 562579 2611013 2030056 3497123 15871822

NOTE

1 This table includes expenditures of all governmental fund types of theprimary government which consist of the general special revenue debt service capital

projects and expendable trust funds



CITY OF BRENHAM

RECONCILIATON OF PROPERTY TAX RECEIVABLES

Last Ten FiscalYears

Fiscal

Year

1998

1999

2000

2001

2002

2003

2004

2005

2006

2007

Beginning

Balance

139238

142872

126066

120730

118450

127304

150968

172424

121368

145448

Additions

Net of

Adjustments

1700952

1788276

1833551

2042221

2391892

2648253

2827306

3072218

3468062

4109307

Collections

Refunds and

Adjustments

1697318

1805082

1838887

2044501

2383038

2624589

2805850

3123274

3443982

4090608

Ending

Balance

142872

126066

120730

118450

127304

150968

172424

121368

145448

164147
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS
REVENUES BY SOURCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 1

Last Ten Fiscal Years

FISCAL LICENSES AND INTER CHARGES FOR FINES AND MISCEL TOTAL

YEAR TAXES PERMITS GOVERNMENTAL SERVICES FORFEITURES LANEOUS REVENUES

1998 5409242 38986 724404 19690 236667 765951 7194940

1999 5755025 49178 1117650 47162 276804 1367217 8613036

2000 6060506 39918 1076484 49787 233410 1313637 8773742

2001 6508631 50114 966026 139743 193627 1598799 9456940
2002 7374952 45181 1 425598 283369 217342 860259 10206701

2003 7832768 43572 1269907 331505 216255 1090139 10784146
2004 8233000 57574 2094325 401130 300235 1985022 13071286

2005 9013770 57846 1596241 396353 344076 1001261 12409547

2006 9728777 56146 1656366 363984 337014 1202119 13344406

2007 11181972 54487 1648201 368861 363253 1553226 15170000

1This table includes revenues of all governmental fund types of the primary government which consists of the general special
revenue debt service capital projects and expendable trust funds
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

RATIO OF ANNUAL DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES

FOR GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

TO GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL EXPENDITURES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

TOTAL RATIO OF

INTEREST GENERAL DEBT SERVICE TO

FISCAL AND FISCAL TOTAL GOVERNMENTAL GENERAL GOVERNMENTAL

YEAR PRINCIPAL CHARGES DEBT SERVICE EXPENDITURES EXPENDITURES

1998 327863 184613 512476 7204919 711

1999 740038 512206 1252244 11969168 1046

2000 757544 541290 1298834 14350205 905

2001 795244 501465 1296709 12369246 1048

2002 916183 610757 1526940 14586794 1047

2003 779940 705872 1485812 14058583 1057

2004 857158 717105 1574263 15495961 1016

2005 920031 689865 1609896 12776981 1260

2006 1014256 647046 1661302 13968525 1189

2007 841734 908768 1750502 15871822 1103

NOTES

1 Debt service excludes general obligation bonds reported in the enterprise funds and debt of thecomponent unit

2 General govemmental expenditures include all governmental fund types of the primary government

3 Interest and fiscal charges exclude bond issuance costs

4 This schedule does not include debt defeasance transactions



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

PROPERTY VALUE AND CONSTRUCTION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

rn

FISCAL

YEAR

NET

TAXABLE

PROPERTY

VALUE

1998 485982156

1999 510931990

2000 523867785

2001 553587303

2002 606171712

2003 643396615

2004 686861013

2005 705780613

2006 742413700

2007 797156826

RESIDENTIAL COMMERCIAL DEMOLITION RELOCATION TOTAL

NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER NUMBER

OF UNITS VALUE OF UNITS VALUE OF UNITS VALUE OF UNITS VALUE OF UNITS VALUE

159 5360473 92 12510902 9 21900 12 54000 272 17947275

193 7656984 95 14669258 4 12500 2 9800 294 22348542

166 4247576 124 7438640 8 131900 6 22700 304 11840816

160 4213330 110 22234514 7 22650 8 119100 285 26589594

182 13438167 125 11598574 6 57875 9 56000 322 25151116

160 6727442 102 9811858 9 49328 1 19150 272 16607778

136 6296904 127 44482180 4 11250 6 31200 273 50821534

186 13396626 124 23887960 10 26514 7 42860 327 37353960

212 13094207 136 13189145 12 95875 13 65980 373 26445207

215 13832035 137 12817681 7 198800 8 71500 367 26920016



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

REVENUES BY SOURCE BUSINESS TYPE ACTIVITIES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

FISCAL TOTAL

YEAR ELECTRIC GAS SANITATION SEWER WATER REVENUES

1998 14818566 2931961 1093971 1672664 2288639 22805801
1999 15098239 2634229 1235324 1610502 2171894 22750188

2000 16383896 3269589 1325829 1739697 2635493 25354504
2001 18291033 5938345 1347140 1619162 2227339 29423019
2002 18026344 3456761 1487365 1594352 2472349 27037171
2003 19230844 4945353 1701153 2032243 2563880 30473473
2004 20468491 4412176 1993821 1953816 2690075 31518379
2005 22138695 4803557 2171315 2377633 2944790 34435990
2006 26440575 5768269 2427160 2934281 3718368 41288653
2007 23184463 5639536 2468172 3798212 3254617 38345000
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS
ELECTRIC CUSTOMERS CONSUMPTION AND SALES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

v
aD

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Numberof customers

Residential 5061 4925 4844 4828 4852 4807 4781 4764 4719 4700
Commercial 1191 1138 1124 1111 1100 1060 1002 997 962 941

Large commercial 288 282 276 274 273 258 248 237 234 229
industrial 20 26 26 28 29 31 35 35 35 35
Street lights 1205 1175 1 137 1 135 1 126 1 115 1 116 1096 1076 1075
Security lights 182 182 178 180 184 183 182 187 182 179

Total 7 947 7728 7 585 7 556 7 564 7 454 7 364 7 316 7 208 7 159

Consumption inKWHI
Residential 70267796 73781005 71200173 67146651 70366417 68957930 71179304 70807609 70038320 70421885
Commercial 17089919 17756825 17639335 17006158 17616182 16870604 17086571 16773652 15573414 14997792
Largecrommercial 64226951 64242555 63440681 61690946 60934736 54909551 50535244 49799714 48459628 46424961
Industrial 148939620 157358022 154601347 146081323 152368023 160204329 163677977 169415182 168191 452 163757022
Street lights 1388136 1353480 1309704 1308072 1296802 1285032 1285032 1262568 1240008 1238376
Security lights 277728 280800 276576 279264 284736 288768 290016 295872 286464 279552
Total 302190150 314772687 308 467 816 293512414 302866 896 302616214 304 054144 308 354 597 303789 286 297 119 569

Sales 1
Residential 6419733 7118275 5985305 5686795 5436951 4969087 5205766 4718095 4395586 4412538
Commercial 1607902 1760370 1526577 1478458 1393007 1252180 1275689 1140992 1009960 977119

Large commercal 4867798 5253311 4388473 4270913 3784246 3320333 3085814 2642020 2400070 2316498

Industrial 9842065 11814007 9679213 8574419 8106613 8076026 8294969 7 452143 6827799 6683891

Streetlights 81595 81238 76322 76337 71278 71869 78156 67008 62534 62455

Security lights 39011 39 525 38901 39 114 38603 34107 34171 34916 33 809 32991

Total 22858104 26 066 726 21 694 791 20126 036 18 830698 17723 612 17 974 565 16 055 174 14 729 758 14 485 492

Annual average consumption
per customer inKWH1

Residential 13884 14981 14699 13808 14503 14345 14888 14863 14842 14983
Commercial 14349 15604 15693 15307 16015 16010 17052 16824 16189 15938

Large commercial 223010 227810 229858 225149 223204 212828 203771 210125 207092 202729
Industrial 7446981 6052232 5946206 5217 190 5254070 5167882 4676514 4840434 4805470 4678772
Street lights 1 152 1152 1 152 1 152 1 152 1 152 1 151 1152 1152 1152
Security lights 1526 1543 1554 1551 1547 1578 1593 1582 1574 1562

Monthly average bill

per customer

Residential 106 120 103 98 93 86 91 83 78 78
Commercial 113 129 113 111 106 98 106 95 87 87

Largecommerciai 1409 1552 1325 1299 1155 1072 1037 929 855 843
Industrial 41009 37865 31023 25519 23295 21710 19750 17743 16257 15914
Street lights 6 6 B 6 5 5 6 5 5 5

Security lights 18 18 18 18 17 16 16 16 15 15

Average price per KWH purchased 00557 00650 00501 00480 00441 00411 00467 00402 00368 00372

Average price per KVIIH sold 00756 00828 00703 00686 00622 00586 00591 00521 00485 00488

line loss 443 406h 519k 533 537h 435 268 348 332 367

1 Sales reflect KWH sold and do notinGude charges for other services



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS
GAS CUSTOMERS CONSUMPTION AND SALES

Last Ten Fiscal Years

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998
Number of customers

Residential 3490 3443 3423 3417 3448 3446 3428 3413 3386 3374
Small commercial 369 345 344 329 314 319 324 310 306 301

Large commercal 124 127 128 129 127 130 127 125 125 116
Governmental 64 64 66 65 63 60 57 61 56 51
industrial 3 3 4 4 4 3 3 3 3 3

Total 4050 3982 3965 3944 3956 3958 3939 3912 3876 3845

Consumption inmcfl

Residential 112591 89134 94947 101988 126301 118657 141252 93099 101099 133159
Small commercial 24202 21183 18386 18501 21078 17603 21147 11066 11559 14177
Large commercial 168806 164018 153229 160421 180596 189458 195334 183461 180888 191974
Governmental 43576 40741 42915 43974 49862 28570 28074 25145 22960 26474
Industrial 253544 248432 233585 232906 267083 332488 371381 316039 327212 315674
Total 602719 563508 543062 557790 644920 686776 757188 628810 643718 681458

Sales 11
Residential 1414718 1227469 1044382 1036421 1271425 769167 1465948 672735 646991 851911
Small commercial 261881 247547 180366 166469 191032 102501 204677 75480 68919 88082
Large commercial 1501897 1653440 1306104 1223093 1337093 883081 1497216 913615 669636 764003
Governmental 403126 431779 374630 349391 399995 148032 254866 138547 93813 109786
tndustriai 2058256 2250948 1845221 1631185 1729332 1550328 2512118 1466193 1149756 1113765
Total 5639878 5811183 4750703 4406559 4928877 3453109 5934825 3266570 2629115 2927547

Annual average consumption
percustomer inKYVHI

Residential 32 26 28 30 37 34 41 27 30 39
Small commercial 66 61 53 56 67 55 65 36 38 47

Large commercial 1361 1291 1197 1244 1422 1457 1538 1468 1447 1655
Governmental 681 637 650 677 791 476 493 412 410 519
Industrial 84515 82811 58396 58227 66771 110829 123794 105346 109071 105225

Monthyaverage bill

percustomer

Residential 34 30 25 25 31 19 36 16 16 21
Small commercial 59 60 44 42 51 27 53 20 19 24
Large commercial 1009 1085 850 790 877 566 982 609 446 549
Governmental 525 562 473 448 529 206 373 189 140 179
Industrial 57174 62526 38442 33983 36028 43065 69781 40728 31938 30938

Average price per mcf purchased 64885 81660 72225 59204 57464 35759 63861 37032 26822 29488

Averege price per mcf sold 93524 103125 87480 79000 76426 50280 78380 51948 40843 42960

line loss gain 194 021 018 085 035 1 14 084 353 144 134

1 Sales reflect mcf sold and do not inGude charges forother services



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS
ELECTRIC RATES 1

Impacting Last Ten Fiscal Years

0

EFFECTIVE

DATE CHARGES

Sep251995 Customer charge
Demand charge
Noncoincident demand charge
On peak demandcharge
Off peak demand charge
KVA

Apr012002 Customer charge
Wires charge per KVUH

Sep222002 Customer charge
Wires charge per K1NH

Jan012003 Customer charge
Wires charge per KVUH

RESIDENTIAL SMALL COMMERCIAL LARGE COMMERCIAL

SINGLE THREE SINGLE THREE SINGLE THREE

PHASE PHASE PHASE PHASE PHASE PHASE

1159 2005 1500 2595 4036 6983
630 630

1160 2000 1500 2600 4000 7000
002290 002290 002200 002200 001510 001510

1160 2000 1500 2600 4000 7000
002510 002510 002420 002420 001640 001640

1160 2000 1500 2600 4000 7000
002520 002520 002430 002430 001650 001650

SMALL LARGE
INDUSTRIAL INDUSTRIAL

10000 10000

1 7930

90610
64650
0240

10000
000896

10000
000993

10000
000993

1 7930

90610
64650
0181

10000
000636

10000
000700

10000
000700

1Rates reflect base charges excluding the energy charge which is the cost of energy passed directly through to the customer Customers are also assessed charges for

adjustments in generation charges as needed



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

GAS RATES

Impacting Last Ten Fiscal Years

EFFECTIVE RESIDENTIAL SMALL COMMERCIAL LARGE COMMERCIAL SMALL INDUSTRIAL LARGE GOVERN

DATE CHARGES URBAN RURAL URBAN RURAL URBAN RURAL URBAN RURAL INDUSTRIAL MENTAL

Oct011995 First 1 mcf Min 1
Next 4 mcf
Next 10 mcf
All additional mcf

Minimum bill 1
First 30 mcfMin 1

All mcf 1

All mcf urban1
All mcf rural 1

Feb221999 Customer charge
Gas charge per mcf 2

Sep222002 Customer charge
Gas charge per mcf2

Sep222004 Customer charge
Gas charge per mcf 2

Feb222006 Customer charge
Gas charge permcf 2

Dec082006 Customer charge
Gas charge per mcf 2

530 795 530 795
242 362 242 362

189 384 189 384

158 236 158 236 080 120 080 120

530 795 530 795 2880 4320 2880 4320
101 4320 101 4320

069

530 610
352600 375800

616 709
373100 399400

729 839
400000 430300

729 839
966500 996800

800 920

1053100 1093000

530 610
352600 375800

616 709
373100 399400

729 839
400000 430300

729 839

966500 996800

800 920

1053100 1093000

2880 3312
317700 335400

3350 3852
333600 353700

3963 4557
354400 377500

3963 4557

920900 944000

4500 5175
979100 1007900

2880 3312 2880
317700 335400 287200

3350 3852 3350
333600 353700 298600

3963 4557 3963
354400 377500 313400

3963 4557 3963

920900 944000 879900

4500 5175 4500

979100 1007900 968500

101
151

2880
329700

3350
346200

3963
367700

3963

934200

4500
952300

1 In addition to the base charges each customers monthly bill includes a gas fuel adjustment charge permcf

2In addition to the appropriate base rate charge each customer shall pay a Gas Cost Adjustment Charge to recover those costs of purchasing gas on a wholesale basis which

exceed the allowance provided for the cost of gas within the base rate



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

TEN LARGEST ELECTRICCUSTOMERS
Current Year and Nlne Years Ago

2007

PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL CITY

ELECTRIC ELECTRIC

NAME BILLINGS CHARGES

Blue Bell Creameries 3001554 1295

Mount Vernon Mills Inc 2464220 1063

Blinn College
ValmonUAls Abated

BrenhamISD

Brenham State School

City of Brenham Wastewater Plant

Brenham Wholesale Grocery
Trinity Medical Center

Germania Insurance

Total

981409 423

825602 356

635097 274

479727 207

471927 204

336751 1 45

322976 139

253935 110

9773198 4215

1998

PERCENTAGE
OF TOTAL CITY

ELECTRIC ELECTRIC
NAME BILLINGS CHARGES

Mount Vernon Mills Inc 1676929 1132

Blue Bell Creameries 1537922 1038
Blinn College 427731 289

Brenham State School 349 812 236

BrenhamISD

Cleaners Hanger Co

ValmonUAls
Brenham Wholesale Grocery
City of Brenham Wastewater Plant

HEB

Total

82

404466 273

274597 185

219178 1 48

195713 132

167799 1 13

168457 114

5422604 3659



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

TENl1RGEST GAS CUSTOMERS

Current Year and Nine Years Ago

PER ENT

OF TOTAL CITY

GAS GAS

NAME BILLINGS CHARGES

Mount Vemon Mills Inc 1380627 2448

Blue Bell Creameries 734153 1302

Blinn College 288 623 512

2007

234994 417

177346 314

122625 217

108161 192

1998
PERCENTAGE

OF TOTAL CITY

GAS GAS

NAME

MountVemon Mills Inc

Blue Beli Creameries

Tuscarora

Longwood Elastomers

Cleaners Hanger Co

ValmonUAls

Trinity Medical Center

Blinn College
Brenham Housing Authority
BrenhamISD

Total

BILLINGS CHARGES

Longwood Elastomers

ValmonUAls

Trinity Medical Center

Brenham Housing Authority
BrenhamISD

Navista Inc

Ellisons Greenhouse

Total

84889 151

82858 1 47

52754 094

3 26 5793

697599 2379

255306 871

136272 465

97231 332

84025 287

69330 236

47330 161

47078 161

45582 155

44655 152

1524408 5199
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

THE WATER SYSTEM UTILITY BILLING STATISTICS

September 30 2007

DECREASE
2007 2006 INCREASE

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

Residential 5049 4867 182

Commercial 1232 1174 58

Meter on Fire Hydrant 11 11

Sprinkler 362 320 42

TOTAL 6654 6372 282

CONSUMPTION in thousands of gallons

Residential 324805400 421963600 97158200

Commercial 373245000 395660700 22415700

Meter on Fire Hydrant 2816800 3836700 1019900

Sprinkler 98679400 134922100 36242700
TOTAL 799546600 956383100 156836500

SALES in dollars

Residential 1451161 1721672 270511

Commercial 1319603 1383490 63887

Meter on Fire Hydrant 13508 17 707 4 199

Sprinkler 409496 518301 108805

TOTAL 3193768 3641170 447402

ANNUAL AVERAGE CONSUMPTION PER CUSTOMER

Residential in thousands of gallons 64331 86699 22368

Commercial 302959 337019 34060

Meter on Fire Hydrant 256073 348791 92718

Sprinkler 272595 421632 149037

MONTHLY AVERAGE BILL PER CUSTOMER

Residential 24 29 5

Commercial 89 98 9

Meter on Fire Hydrant 102 134 32

Sprinkler 94 135 41

AVERAGE PRICE PER 1000 GALLONS PURCHASED 0224 0131 0093

AVERAGE PRICE PER 1000 GALLONS SOLD 3994 3807 0187

LINE LOSS 400 1824 1424

12243600 and12249600 gallons respectively unbilled City water usage
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CITY OFBRENHAM TEXAS

THE SEWER SYSTEM UTILITY BILLING STATISTICS

September 30 2007

DECREASE

2007 2006 INCREASE

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

Residential 5025 4783 242

Commercial 1037 1046 9

Industrial 9 9

Oak Hill Acres Flow Meter 1 1

TOTAL 6073 5839 233

SALES in dollars

Residential 1654671 1207737 446934

Commercial 1034527 996296 38231

Industrial 882042 566748 315294

Oak Hill Acres Flow Meter 56548 39881 16667

TOTAL 3627789 2810662 817126

MONTHLY AVERAGE BILL PER CUSTOMER

Residential 27 21 6

Commercial 83 79 4

Industrial 8167 5248 2919

Oak Hill Acres Flow Meter 4712 3323 1389
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

THE SANITATION SYSTEM UTILITY BILLING STATISTICS

September 30 2007

DECREASE

2007 2006 INCREASE

NUMBER OF CUSTOMERS

Residential 4624 4508 116

Residential Rural 32 56 24

Commercial 512 501 11

Dumpster

TOTAL 5168 5065 103

SALES in dollars

Residential 745431 730836 14595

ResidentialRural 4930 13515 8585

Commercial 776754 767215 9539

Dumpster

TOTAL 1527115 1511566 15549

MONTHLY AVERAGE BILL PER CUSTOMER

Residential 13 14 1

Residential Rural 13 20

Commercial 126 128 2
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STATISTICAL SECTION CITY OF BRENHAM

This part of the City of Brenhams comprehensive annual report presents detailed information as a context for

understanding what the information in the financial statements note disclosures and required supplementary
information says about the Citys overall financial health

Contents

Tables

Financial Trends 14

These schedules contain trend information to help the reader understand how the Citys financial performance
and wellbeing have changed over time

Revenue Capacity 511

These schedules contain the information to help the reader assess the Citys most significant local revenue

sources electric and gas service charges sales tax and property tax

Debt Capacity 1216

These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Citys current levels of

outstanding debt and the Citys ability to issue additional debt in the future

Demographic and Economic Information 1718

These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the environment

within which the Citys financial activities take place

Operating Information 1921

These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to help the reader understand how the information in

the Citys financial report relates to the services the City provides and the activities it performs

Sources Unless othewise noted the information in these tables is derived from the comprehensive annual

financial reports of the relevant year The City implemented GASB Statement 34 in 2003 schedules

presenting governmentwide information include information beginning in that year
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NET ASSETS BY COMPONENT CITY OF BRENHAM
LastFlve Fiscal Years 1
accrual basis of accounting TABLE 1

Description

Governmental activities
Invested in capital assets net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Subtotal govermental activities net assets

Businesstype activities
Invested in capital assets net of related debt
Restricted
Unrestricted

Subtotal businesstype activities netassets

Primary government
Invested in capital assets net of related debt
Restricted

Unrestricted

Total primary government net assets 4

Component unit

Fiscal Year
2007 20062 2005 20043 2003

32212469 32062294 12937041 11978324 8599427
333943 1439731 3145253 3059760 4328818
4764217 2336891 846738 790615 595910

37310629 35838916 16929032 15828699 13524155

27082608 27842335 27560970 26087722 21635027
538822 243547 1550431 2000995 5615238
8201530 6940747 5436192 5954831 6695793

35822960 35026629 34547593 34043548 33946058

59295077 59904629 40498011 38066046 30234454
872765 1683278 4695684 5060755 9944056
12965747 9277638 6282929 6745446 7291703

73133589 70865545 51476624 49872247 47470213

Invested in capital assets net of related debt 163683 163683 85538 134928 35537
Restricted 782051 513699
Unrestricted 279770 102795 108916
Total component unit net assets 4 945734 677382 365308 237723 144453

1The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year2003 Therefore ten years of data will be accumulated
over time

2As restated see note IVF

3As restated for reallocation of 300000 in long term debt from business type activities to governmental activities

4See Table 2 for changes in net assets from year to year
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CHANGE IN NET ASSETS CITY OF BRENHAM

lastFveFscalrears

accrual basis of accounting TABLE 2

Fiscal Year

2007 2005 2005 2004 2003

Program expenses
Govemmental activities

General government 1888188 1993032 1930824 1071441 1099474
Public safety 5028102 4719613 4174264 4399037 4255750
Highways and streets 2279505 1637 165 1569656 1544154 1548837
Health and welfare 580118 624350 218987 569459 554797
Economic development 3417 269685
Culture and recreation 3264409 3047778 2903509 2802023 2897340
Debt service 991486 709650 743699 758226 696557

Total government activities program expenses 14031808 12731588 11540939 11 147757 11322440

Businesstype activities

Electric 23342221 25991891 20843491 19621793 18431275
Gas 5646666 6027066 5225571 4537389 5023642
Water 3164010 3162284 2732815 2557248 2439366
Sewer 3559574 3544654 2944784 2656350 2559845
Sanitation 2331316 2309317 2062243 2007536 1689275

Total businesstype activities program expenses 38043787 41035212 33808904 31380316 30143403

Total primary government expenses 52075595 53766800 45349843 42528073 41465843

Program revenues

Govemmental activities

Charges for services

General government 482252 423312 450653 405857 284 763

Public safety 2321 34020 28641 25130 30798
Highways and streets 13 14 15 59 59

Health and welfare 30290 32094 7179 11299 13245
Economic development 25 25

Culture and recreation 271842 267813 314012 316720 241706
Operating grants and contributions 915090 678830 933651 968117 965931
Capital grants and contributions 1081668 1120556 704478 2192208 542589

Total govermental activities program revenues 2783476 2556639 2438629 3919415 2079116

Businesstype activities

Charges for services

Electric 23184463 26440575 22138695 20468491 19230844
Gas 5639536 5768269 4803557 4412176 4945353
Water 3254617 3718368 2944790 2690075 2563880
Sewer 3798212 2934281 2377633 1953816 1756712
Sanitation 2468172 2427160 2171215 1981540 1667958

Operating grants and contributions 100 12281 33195
Capital grants and contributions 10160 275531

Total businesstype activities program revenues 38345000 41298813 34435990 31518379 30473473

Total primary government program revenues 41128476 43855452 36874619 35437 794 32552589

Net expenserevenue
Govemmental activities 11248332 10174949 9102310 7228342 9243324
Businesstype activities 301213 263601 627086 138063 330070

Total primary government net expense 10947 119 9911348 8475224 7090279 8913254

Continued
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CHANGE IN NET ASSETS CITY OF BRENHAM

Last Flve Fiscal Years 1
accrual basis of accounting TABLE 2

Generei revenues and other changes in netassets

Govemmental activities

Property taxes

Sales taxes

Other taxes
Grants and contributions not restricted

Investment inwme notrestricted
Miscellaneous

Gain loss on sale of capital assets

Payments from component Unit

Transfers

Total govemment activities

Businesstype activities

Investment income not restricted

Miscellaneous

Gain loss on sale of capital assets

Transfers

Total businesstype activities

Total primary govemment general revenues and other

changes in netassets

Change in net assets

Govemmental activities as previously reported
Restatement in capital assets 2
Restatement in deferred revenue 2
Restatement in bonds 3
Govemmental activities restated

Businesstype activities as previously reported
Restatement in capital assets 2
Restatement in bonds3
Businesstype activities restated

Total primary government change in net assets

Component unit

Program expenses
Program revenues

Brenham Community Development Corporation
Netexpenses

General revenues and other changes in net assets

Component unit activities

Sales taxes

Investment income notrestricted

Miscellaneous

Gain loss on sale of capital assets

Payments from component Unit

Total component unit activities

Component unit change in assets

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

4152080 3505543 3091085 2899464 2680158
3524009 3290760 2910902 2610841 2588412
3524583 2956555 2960726 2744151 2587861

16624 28348
587125 261901 143000 138952 111107
55483 120666 119836 134188 103857
9508 5458 58343 21536 51110

770877 661417 661407 622061 675704
96380 239378 374031 645069 1671039

12720045 11041678 10202644 9832886 10395376

462286 312516 227280 272546 314044
267835 18812 22538 31950 30894

138624 10032 1170
96380 239378 374031 645069 1671039

495117 101982 123043 340573 1326101

13215162 11143660 10079601 9492313 9069275

1471713 866729 1100334 2604544 1152052
17915958

127197
300000

1471713 18909885 1100334 2304544 1152052

796330 365583 504043 202510 996031
113453

300000
796330 479036 504043 97490 996031

2268044 19388921 1604377 2402034 156021

163868 137649 154949 157137 145353

163868 137649 154949 157137 145353

1174670 1096920 970301 870280 862804
28427 14220 1275 1344 4704

560 844 25201
28194

770877 661417 661407 622061 675704

432220 449723 282534 250407 217005

268352 312074 127585 93270 71652

1The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year 2003 Therefore ten years of data will be accumulated

over time

2As restated see note IVF

3 As restated for reallocation of300000 in long term debt from business type activities to governmental activities
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FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CITY OFBRENHAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

modifiedacrtralbasis of arxounting TABLE3

Fiscal Year
2007 2005 2005 20041 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

General fund
Reserved 37908 40578 35748 41038 56306 31179 38975 24817 21771
Unreserved 2251108 1661118 1217177 632990 363249 919391 1383016 860928 927677 695806
Total general fund 2251108 1699026 1257755 668738 404287 975697 1414195 899 903 952494 E 717577

All other governmental funds

Reserved reported in
Debt service fund 333943 200931 146770 177877 295934 316626 250540 375090 398664 398791

Unreserved reported in

Speaal revenue funds 700725 170553 220271 161873 201 107 255728 275857 234265 219326 216733
Capital projects funds 8722314 10196685 1738329 2348041 3638 494 1 551 731 985 788 402 851 5 294 158 319 901

Total all other governmental funds 9756982 10568169 2105370 2687791 4135535 2124085 459391 1012 206 5912148 935425

1 As restated forreallocation of 300000 in long term debt from business type activities to governmental activities



CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CITY OF BRENHAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting TABLE4

w

Revenues
Taxes

Licenses and permits
Intergovernental
Charges forservices
Fines and forfeitures

Investment income

Payment from component unit
Contributions and donations
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expendkures
Curent

Cultun and recreation
Economicdevelopment
General government
Health and welfare

Highways and streets

Public safety
Debt service

Interest fiscal charges
Prinapal retirement
Issuance costs

Capital outlay
Total expenditures

Excess deficiency of revenues

overunder expendkures

Fiscal Year
2007 2008 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

11181972 9728777 9013770 8233000 7832768 7374952 8508631 6060506 5755025 5409242
54487 56146 57846 57574 43572 45181 50114 39918 49178 38986
1648201 1656366 1596241 2094325 1269907 1425598 966026 993974 1117650 724404
368861 363984 396353 401130 331505 283369 139743 49787 47162 19690
363253 337014 344076 300235 216255 217342 193627 233410 276804 236667
572336 246716 137011 138952 111107 187302 264869 302774 419983 111651
770877 661417 661407 622061 675704 714985 525976 80000
124608 176214 44895 1084504 265270 1156193 376888 376295 103000
85405 117772 157948 139505 303328 399 980 347 847 343 708 269445 396648

15170000 13344406 12409547 13071286 10784146 10913979 10153126 8480865 8311542 7040288

2611013 2467861 2374455 2267690 2366423 2590967 1988445 1399065 1096587 860238
3417 275531

1383100 1270288 1560873 974771 980100 876371 713764 751921 619595 506576
562579 614794 214873 571160 556746 613154 434823 481397 423424 362605

1 153897 1085 298 1046654 1070642 1032007 1857 357 1073128 1 148165 1283000 1572 82 3

4634054 4179268 4053844 4164948 4021661 4228819 3864203 3522975 3253276 3255856

938159 664571 724066 739385 716629 610758 501466 541290 512206 184613
1070825 1138070 1038665 927215 848102 916183 795244 757544 740038 327873
21072 72468 62692 71511 187204
3497123 2475907 1763551 4780081 3198 692 2795 571 2847 592 5 719 752 3788 039 25 320

15871822 13868525 12776981 15499309 14058583 14 561 691 12 218 665 14 322 109 11 883 369 7 095904

701822 624119 367434 2428023 3274 437 3 647 712 2 065 539 5 841 144 3 571 827 55 616

Other financing sources uses
Transfers in 723787 802738 608424 1088710 1892850 1539723 1251 490 951606 1 152526 533149
Transfers out 848384 563360 235394 293904 221812 453779 143256 62995 1 420868 104479
Proceeds from bonds 9000000 3043442 4342199 9050000
Refunding bonds issued 1524321
Gain on settlement 75000
Bond premium refund 1810
Payment to refunded bond escrow agent 1501306
Proceeds from capital lease 544300 288810 449924 289547 273823
Total other financing sourcesuses 442718 9528188 374030 1244730 4 714 480 5 792 690 1 108 234 888 611 8783 468 702 493

Netchange infund balance 259104 8904069 6596 1183293 1440 043 2 144 978 957 305 4952 533 5211 641 646 877

Debt service as a percentage of

noncaptal expenditures 1640 1632 1601 1555 1499 1359k 1384 1510k 1753 7250



TAX REVENUES BY SOURCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS CITY OF BRENHAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

modified accrual basis of accounting TABLE 5

Fiscal Ad Valorem Franchise Motel Mixed Total
Year Sales Tax Taxes 1 Taxes 2 Tax Beverage Other Tax Tax Revenues

1998 2160860 1696157 1345177 167221 12304 27523 5409242
1999 2320941 1804226 1354375 231929 14844 28710 5755025
2000 2488593 1837844 1457262 234966 14282 27559 6060506
2001 2573793 2034652 1620358 241369 16821 21638 6508631
2002 2552078 2386339 2152380 240653 14259 29243 7374952
2003 2588412 2656495 2289566 250942 16776 30577 7832768
2004 2610842 2812921 2412216 317533 14403 65085 8233000
2005 2910902 3092295 2593770 351238 15718 49847 9013770
2006 3290760 3481463 2567933 356745 20664 11212 9728777
2007 3524009 4133381 3117224 371468 26525 9365 11181972

1Ad valorem taxes consist of total collections net of any tax refunds

2Franchise taxes which were previously classified as receipt taxes have been properlyreclassified
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ASSESSED 7 AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY

Last Ten Fiscal Years
CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 6

Net Total

Fiscal Personal Gross Taxable Direct

Year Residential Commercial Properly Valuation Exemption Value Tax Rate

1998 222522670 155588798 164233695 542345163 56363007 485982156 035000
1999 218865870 182817531 179679871 581363272 70431282 510931990 035000
2000 219109029 197720959 180726140 597556128 73688343 523867785 035000
2001 269118178 186973818 184013476 640105472 86518169 553587303 037000
2002 294146981 207576271 201341491 703064743 96893031 606171712 039500

2003 313526154 222282517 200099154 735907825 92511210 643396615 041160
2004 342870991 256701023 188770685 788342699 101481686 686861013 041160

2005 361775150 256868274 177812355 796455779 90675166 705780613 043620
2006 370683893 174081839 251690047 831172476 88694515 742477961 046620

2007 422316663 150958311 257897502 900404272 103247446 797156826 050630

1The property is reassessed each year The assessed value is based on 100 of estimated actual value Tax rates are per
100 of assessed value
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SALES SUBJECT TO SALES TAX BY INDUSTRY
Last Five Fiscal Years 1

TABLE 7

rn

Sales subiect to sales tax
Retail trade
Accommodationfoodservices

Manufacturing
Wholesale trade
Other services

AdminsupporUwaste mgmtremediation services
Real estaterentaUleasing
Miningquarryingoilgasextraction
Construction
ProfessionaUscientctechnicalservices
Public administration
Information
Educational services
Finannsurance
Artsentertainmentrecreation

Agricultureforestryflshing hunting
Health caresocial assistance

Transportationwarehousing
Management of companiesenterprises
Other

All industries 3

City sales tax rate 4

CITY OF BRENHAM

Calendar Year 2
2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

165907922 154304442 128194651 125482321 123089392
28184502 25768161 22784614 21969171 21527867
16511966 13516760 11181932 11833870 14551417
15931364 12729724 13550787 10907440 10151093
6590499 6739945 6295677 5819704 5925060
6511431 6549993 6196661 5375510 4881149
4927370 4016978 3112151 2896971 3195265
3973890 2051124 2128802 411837 384445
3758819 3564285 3918631 4851630 3240315
2250152 2226815 1958581 2061578 1790163
1778439 0 0 0 0
1662880 2479786 45820215 40204429 2949226
1585995 1270482 1537769 1740983 57479
1182103 1070593 800927 798105 1228011
428104 400853 360305 434109 331400
338068 130726 309314 270955 105119
33136 41445 29011 25904 41728
27959 33263 0 0 0

0 0 0 0 0
0 110 49923 137083 726073

266586139 243484091 254305669 241905908 202874609

001500 001500 001500 001500 001500

1The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year2003 Therefore ten years of data will be accumulated over
time

2 Data was derived from the Texas ComptrollersQuarterly Sales Tax Report for the City of Brenham Information was selected on a

calendar year basis in order to capture those businesses that only file annually Data for calendar year 2007 was unavailable

3 The total for all industries includes sales subject to sales tax for businesses that cannot be shown in their industry category because
that category has less than four reporting outlets Therefore summation of sales subject to sales tax by industry will be less than the
total shown for all industries

4Onequarter of this rate and sales taxrevenue collected is allocated to the Brenham Community Development Corporation



DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING PROPERTY AND SALES TAX RATES
Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 8

PROPERTY TAX RATES per 5100 of assessed value SALES TAX RATES

City Direct Rates Brenham Total Total
Fiscal General Debt Independent Biinn Washington Overlapping Cityof Washington Overlapping
Year Fund Service Total School District College County Governments Brenham County Governments

1998 021600 013400 035000 138610 004060 045670 223340 001500 000500 002000
1999 021600 013400 035000 156350 006110 046490 243950 001500 000500 002000
2000 021600 013400 035000 153560 005980 048400 242940 001500 000500 002000
2001 027300 009700 037000 154560 005760 048400 245720 001500 000500 002000
2002 027500 012000 039500 157170 005440 045000 247110 001500 000500 002000
2003 028750 012410 041160 159900 005490 045160 251710 001500 000500 002000
2004 030000 011160 041160 159900 005670 045160 251890 001500 000500 002000
2005 030510 013110 043620 156900 005520 044350 250390 001500 000500 002000
2006 031650 014970 046620 161000 005100 044350 257070 001500 000500 002000
2007 031650 018980 050630 144500 008200 043350 246680 001500 000500 002000

co
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TEN LARGEST PROPERTY TAX PAYERS 1
CurrentYearand Nine Years Ago

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 9

2007 1998

Percentage Percentage
of Total City of Total City

Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Value

Blue Beil Creameries 37797420 474

ValmonUAls Abated 15082070 189k
Mount Vemon Mills Inc 14948290 188h

WalMart Properties 4109 13964200 1 75

Magnetic Instruments 11 436220 1 43

LowesHome Centers Inc 2521 11279395 1 41k

ValmontsAls 11191010 1 40k

Germania Farm Mutual Aid Assoc 9748755 122
Moore Wallace North America 9205070 1 15
Longwood Elastomers Inc 8417210 106

Total 143069640 1795

Taxable Taxable

Assessed Assessed

Taxpayer Value Value

Blue Bell Creameries 37196300 765k
Mount Vernon Mills Inc 26856320 553

Valmont Industries 11514580 237

Cleaners Hangers Co 11292600 232

Brenham Wholesale Groc 10201370 210

WalMart Properties 4109 10190580 210

Germania Farm Mutual Aid Assoc 7932160 163

Southwestern Bell Telephone 7128550 1 47

Sealy Mattress Co 6803870 1 40
Steadley Company 6590030 136

135706360 2792

1Data is from Washington County Appraisal District
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PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 10

Collected within the

Fiscal Year of Levy Total Collections

Levy Collections

Fiscal Assessed Tax Net of Percentage from Prior Percentage
Year Valuation Rate Adjustments Amount of Levy Years Amount of Levy

1998 485982156 0 35000 1700952 1655687 97 34 40469 1696551 1 99 74
1999 510931990 0 35000 1788276 1757932 9830 45770 1804226 2 10089

2000 523867785 0 35000 1833551 1802125 9829 34949 1837335 3 10021
2001 553587303 0 37000 2042221 2010387 9844 22592 2035652 4 9968

2002 606171712 039500 2391893 2354756 9845 27119 2386386 5 9977

2003 643396615 041160 2648253 2595349 9800 29990 2625339 9913

2004 686861013 0 41160 2827306 2746974 97 16 66648 2813622 9952

2005 705780613 0 43620 3072218 3022400 9838 68463 3092295 6 10065
2006 742477961 046620 3468062 3413035 9841 30946 3443981 9931

2007 797156826 0 50630 4088719 4020719 9834 65640 4089261 7 10001

1 Includes 395 of 1998 rollback taxes collected

2 Includes 524 of 1999 rollback taxes collected

3 Includes 261 of2000 rollback taxes collected

4 Includes2673 of 2001 rollback taxes collected

5 Includes4511 in overrages
6 Includes1432 in overrages

7 Includes2902 of 2007 rollback taxes collected



PRINCIPAL SALES TAX PAYERS BYINDUSTRY1
Calendar Years 2006 and 2002 2

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 11

2006 2002

Sales Percentage Numberof Sales Percentage Numberof
Subject to of All Reporting Subject to of All Reporting

Sales Tax Payers By Industry Sales Tax Industries Outlets Sales Tax Pavers By Industry Sales Tax Industries Outlets
Retail trade 165907922 6223 394 Retail trade 123089392 5088 378
AcxommodatioNfood services 28184502 1057 79 AccommodafioNfood services 21527867 890 67
Manufacturing 16511966 619 75 Manufacturing 14551417 602 65
Wholesale Dade 15931364 598 42 Wholesale trade 10151093 420 29
Other services 6590499 247k 101 Other services 5925060 245 104
AdmiNsupporUwaste mgmUremediafion services 6511431 244 68 AdmiNsupportwastemgmUremediafion services 4881 149 202 62
RealestaterentaUleasing 4927370 185 16 Construction 3240315 134 80
Miningquartyingoilgasextraction 3973890 1 49 5 Real estaterentaUleasing 3195265 132 10
Construction 3758819 141 83 Information 2949226 122 12
ProfessionaUscientficJtechnical services 2250152 084 46 ProfessionaUscientifiGtechnical services 1790163 074k 38
Public administration 1778439 067 4 Finannsurance 1228011 051 13
Information 1662880 062 11 Other 726073 030 50
Educational services 1585995 059 13 Miningquaryingoilgasextraction 384445 016 4
Finannsurance 1182103 044 11 ArtsentertainmenUrecreafion 331400 014 11
ArtsentertainmenUrecreafion 428104 016 15 Agricultureforestryfishinghunting 105119 004 10
Agricukureforestryfishinghunting 338068 013 11 Educatonal services 57 479 002 9
Heatlh caresocialassistance 33136 001 5 Health caresocialassistance 41728 002 4

o Transportafionhvarehousing 27859 001 6 Public administration 0 000 3
Management ofcompanieslenterprises 0 000 1 Transportafionwarehousing 0 000 3
Other 0 000 18 Management of companiesenterprises 0 000 0

All industries 3 266 586139 10000 1004 Ali industries 3 241905908 10000 952

1 Sales taxdata by business entity is deemed by the Texas State Comptroller to be confidential and may not be publiGy disGosed

2 Data was derived from theTexas ComptrollersQuarterly Sales Tax Report fortheCity of Brenham Information was selected on a calendar year basis inorder to capture those business entities that only
file annually Data prior to 2002 and forcalendar year 2007 was unavailable

3 Thetotal forall industries inGudes sales subject to sales tax forbusinesses that cannot be shown in their industry category because that category has less than 4 reporting outlets Therefore summation
of sales subject to sales tax by industry will be less than thetotal shown for all industries



RATIO OFOUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE

Last Ten Fiscal Years
CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 12

Governmental Activities BusinessTypeActivities Percentage
General Certificates General General Certificates General Total of

Fiscal Obligation of Obligation Capital Obligation of Obligation Capital Primary Personal Per
Year Bonds Obligation Refunding Leases Bonds Obligation Refunding Leases Settlement Government Income 1 Capita 1

1998 3105000 245950 5425000 123670 8899620 271 689
1999 2790000 8675000 195912 5205000 113822 16979734 497 1301
2000 2460000 8300000 143368 4970000 103367 15976735 425 1183
2001 2110000 7910000 88124 4725000 92267 14925391 386 1105
2002 1735000 11767124 239676 855000 12117876 3885000 276226 80483 30956385 784 2246
2003 1340000 14433034 171514 585000 18181966 3885000 217454 67972 38881940 985 2810
2004 920000 14292528 551381 300000 17677472 3885000 166807 54689 37847877 887 2692
2005 475000 13817497 432747 17432503 3885000 113759 40586 36197092 785 2542
2006 22278242 597 743 17086758 3530000 138387 25614 43656744 909 3036
2007 19848522 1511950 878321 12826478 7133050 417259 9719 42625299 860 2960

1See Table 17 fortotal personal income and population information

0



RATIO OF NET GENERAL OBLIGATION BONDED DEBT CITY OF BRENHAM
Last Ten Fiscal Years

TABLE 13

Ratio of Net
General Certificates General Gross Less Debt Net Taxable Bonded Debt Net Bonded

Fiscal Obligation of Obligation Bonded Service Funds Bonded Assessed to Assessed Debt Per
Year Bonds Obligation Refunding Debt Available Debt Value Values Capita 1

1998 3105000 3105000 398791 2706209 485982156 056 209
1999 2790000 8675000 11465000 398664 11066336 510931990 217 848
2000 2460000 8300000 10760000 375089 10384911 523867785 198 769

2001 2110000 7910000 10020000 250540 9769460 553587303 176 723
2002 1735000 11767124 13502124 316626 13185498 606171712 218 957

2003 1340000 14433034 15773034 295934 15477100 643396615 241 1118
2004 920000 14292528 15212528 177817 15034711 686861013 219 1069
2005 475000 13817497 14292497 146770 14145727 760929323 186 994
2006 22278242 22278242 198430 22079812 742477961 297 1535
2007 19848522 1511950 21360472 332812 21027660 797156826 264 1460

0
N

1 See Table 17 for population information



DIRECT AND OVERLAPPING DEBT CITY OF BRENHAM

Current Year
TABLE 14

NET GENERAL 2006

OBLIGATION TAX ROLL PERCENTAGE

NAME OF BONDED DEBT TAXABLE APPLICABLE TO CITY OF BRENHAMS

GOVERNMENTAL UNIT OUTSTANDING VALUE CITY OF BRENHAM 1 SHARE OF DEBT

City of Brenham 21027660 797156826 1000 21027660

Brenham IS D 25823455 1599511681 498 12869767

Washington County 6000000 1935628527 412 2471001

Blinn Junior College 1780817808

Total direct and overlapping debt 52851115 6113114842 36368429

Ratio of direct and consolidated overlapping funded debt to taxable assessed valuation 059

Per capita consolidated overlapping tax supported debt based on population of 14402 2525

Note Overlapping governments are those that coincide at least in part with the geographic boundaries of the City
This schedule estimates the portion of the outstanding debt of those overlapping governments that is borne by the

residents and businesses of the City of Brenham This process recognizes that when considering the governments
ability to issue and repay longterm debt the entire debt burden borne by the residents and businesses should be
taken into account However this does not imply that every taxpayer is a resident and therefore responsible for

repaying the debt of each overlapping government

1The percentage of overlapping debtapplicable is estimated using taxable assessed property values Applicable
percentages were estimated by determining the portion of the Citys taxable assessed value that is within the

govemmentsboundaries and dividing it by the Citys total taxable assessed value
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LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 15

Fiscal Year

Taxable assessed valuations

Tax limit per 100 valuation

OM tax rate per 100 valuation

Debt limit per 100 valuation

Debt limit

Total netdebt applicable to limit

Legal debtmargin

Total netdebt applicable to the limit

as a percentage of debt limit

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1998

797156826 742477961 705780613 686861013 643396615 606171 712 553587303 523867785 510931990 485982156

165000 165000 165000 165000 165000 165000 165000 165000 165000 165000

031650 031650 030510 030000 028750 027500 027300 021600 021600 021600

133350 133350 134490 135000 136250 137500 137700 1 43400 1 43400 1 43400

10630086 9900944 9492043 9272624 8766279 8334861 7 622897 7512264 7326765 6968984

1980831 1754883 1 655 433 1 574 263 1485812 1 385364 1234 998 1 237 122 1 190 533 477808

8649255 8146061 7836610 7698361 7280467 6949497 6387899 6275142 6136232 6491176

1863 17 72 1744 1698 1695 1662 1620 1647 1625 686

0
A



PLEDGED REVENUE COVERAGE CITY OF BRENHAM

Last Ten Fiscal Years
TABLE16

Electric Fund Series 1992 Revenue Bonds 1 Water Fund 2

Utility Less Net Debt Utility Less Net Debt

Fiscal Charges Operating Available Debt Service Service Fiscal Charges Operating Available Debt Service Service

Year for Services Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage Year forServices Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

1998 14818566 14058202 760364 170000 10455 421 1998 2288639 1702604 586035 205000 319815 112

1999 15098239 14222491 875748 1999 2171894 2214338 42444 220000 310078 008

2000 16383896 15879020 504876 2000 2635493 1826152 809341 235000 299298 151

2001 18291033 18293266 2233 2001 2227339 1908321 319018 245000 287548 060

2002 18026344 17091916 934428 2002 2472349 2045722 426627 402146 235015 067

2003 19230844 18462455 768389 2003 2563880 2022318 541562 311230 393136 077

2004 20468491 19650655 817836 2004 2690075 2161268 528807 328586 377209 075

2005 22138695 20901606 1237089 2005 2944790 2376870 567920 341325 346490 083

2006 26440575 25982043 458532 2006 3718368 2797111 921257 42213 328534 248

2007 23184463 23342221 157758 2007 3254617 3164010 90607 137026 303652 021

Sewer Fund SelfSupp orting Debt3 Total Electric 4Water and Sewer Funds 5

Utility Less Net Debt Utility Less Net Debt

Fiscal Charges Operating Available Debt Service Service Fiscal Charges Operating Available Debt Service Service

Year for Services Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage Year for Services Expenses Revenue Principal Interest Coverage

1998 1672664 1370839 301825 1998 18779869 17131645 1648224 375000 330270 234

1999 1610502 1617750 7248 1999 2171894 2214338 42444 220000 310078 008

2000 1739697 1699108 40589 2000 2635493 1826152 809341 235000 299298 151

2001 1619162 1769162 150000 2001 2227339 1908321 319018 245000 287548 060

2002 1594352 1861284 266932 144666 338370 055 2002 4066701 3907006 159695 546812 573385 014

2003 2032243 1964495 67 748 88830 561089 010 2003 4596123 3986813 609310 400060 954225 045

2004 1953816 2005729 51913 164256 653379 006 2004 4643891 4166997 476894 492842 1030588 031

2005 2377633 2315795 61838 203644 648215 007 2005 5322423 4692665 629758 544969 994705 041

2006 2944441 2895413 49028 303332 640901 005 2006 6662809 5692524 970285 345545 969435 074

2007 3798212 3559574 238638 571241 617220 020 2007 7052829 6723584 329245 708267 920872 020

1 All revenue bond debt was retired in 1998

2 Waterfundsupported debt indudes 1994 general obligation refunding bonds 2001 general obligation refunding bonds 2001 certificatesof obligation and 2007 general obligation refunding bonds

3 Sewer fundsupported debt includes 2001 and 2002 certificatesof obligation and 2007 general obligation refunding bonds

4Electric fund was only induded inthe summary for 1998

5 Sewer fund was only induded in the summary foryears 2002 and later



DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS

Last Ten Fiscal Years

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 17

Per

Total Capita
Fiscal Personal Personal Unemployment
Year Population 1 Income 000s2 Income 3 Rate 4

1998 12919 328517 25429 29

1999 13048 341884 26202 32

2000 13507 375846 27826 27

2001 13505 386554 28623 23

2002 13785 394761 28637 32

2003 13838 394798 28530 4 1

2004 14062 426458 30327 4 0

2005 14237 461265 32399 4 3

2006 14381 480323 33400 4 0

2007 14402 495883 34432 3 9

1 Population for 1998 and 1999 are estimates based on the 1990 Census and a growth rate of 1 per year

The 2000 population is per the 2000 Census 2001 to 2007 population are projections provided by the

Texas Data Center

2 Total personal income derived by taking Brenham population multiplied by per capita personal income for

Washington County see note 3

3 Data for years 1998 to 2005 is for Washington County and comes from the Bureau of Economic Analysis
2006 and 2007 are estimates based on a five year compound average annual growth rate

4 Unemployment rates are taken from Economic Development Foundation of Brenham reports Data for

these reports come from the U S Bureau of Labor Statistics Under the new U S Bureau of Labor

Statistics mandated methodology for producing labor statistics acity must have a population of at least

25000 for citylevel estimates to be produced therefore the unemployment rates shown for 2005 to 2007

are for Washington County 2007 is based upon a nine month average
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PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS

Current Yearand NJne YearsAgo

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 18

2007

Percentage
of Total Clty

Employer Employees Employment
Blinn College 900 1293

Brenham State School 880 1265

Blue Bell Creameries 786 1129

BrenhamISD 719 1033

WalMart Supercenter 380 546

Germania Insurance 324 4 66

Mount Vernon Mills 305 438

Trinity Medical Center 285 410

City of Brenham 240 345

Sealy Mattress Company 211 303

1998

Percentage
of Total City

Employer Employees Employment
Brenham State School 1062 1691

Blue Bell Creameries 741 1180

BrenhamISD 620 987

Blinn College 600 955

Mount Vernon Mills 350 557

Germania Insurance 285 454

Trinity Medical Center 250 398

WalMart Supercenter 241 384

Valmont ALS 240 382

Brenham Wholesale Grocery 227 361

Total 5030 7228 Total 4616 7350

Employment 1 6959 Employment 1 6280

1 Employment is taken from Economic Development Foundation of Brenham reports Data for these reports come

from the U S Bureau of Labor Statistics Under the new U S Bureau of Labor Statistics mandated methodology for

producing labor statistics a city must have a population of at least25000 for citylevel estimates to be produced
therefore employment shown for 2007 is an estimate based on Washington County employment information 5 months
allocated to the City using the proportion of City to County estimated populations
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FULLTIME EQUIVALENT EMPLOYEES

Last Five Fiscal Years 1

CITY OF BRENHAM

TABLE 19

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Functionprogram
StreetsDrainage 17 50 17 88 1828 1831 1828

ParksRecreation 20 10 20 08 2023 2023 20 48

Aquatic Center 20 19 2250 23 12 2225 24 37

Library 892 7 88 6 84 7 36 7 84

Central Communication 1317 13 19 1422 14 70 1272

Police 33 00 3200 3275 3200 3200

Fire 11 00 11 00 10 50 10 50 10 50

Animal Control 340 300 300 3 00 300

Municipal Court 4 60 4 60 3 60 3 60 360

Public Works 6 14 6 14 5 89 5 64 5 64

Administration 10 00 8 00 825 6 50 650

Utility BillingCustomer Service 10 00 10 00 10 73 9 73 10 73

Finance 1000 11 00 10 00 1200 1200

Public Information 200 200 200 4 00 300

Public Utilities 600 6 00 800 9 33 9 00

Central WarehouseMaintenance 9 38 9 38 9 40 8 37 640

Information Technology 350 4 50 4 50 3 00 300

Electric 11 00 11 00 11 00 1200 1200

Gas 5 33 533 5 33 5 33 5 33

Water Treatment 6 00 6 00 600 7 00 7 00

Water Construction 5 34 5 34 5 34 5 34 5 34

Wastewater Treatment 7 00 7 00 7 00 8 00 800

Wastewater Construction 533 5 33 5 33 5 33 5 33

Transfer Station 308 308 5 14 3 99 4 56

Collection Station 1 52 1 52

Recycling Center 225 225 233 3 33 325

Collection 4 59 4 59 5 84 7 17 8 50

Special RevenuesGrants 225 3 00 4 00

Total 240 34 240 59 246 87 251 01 25237

1 The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year 2003

Therefore ten years of data will be accumulated over time
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OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTIONPROGRAM CITY OFBRENHAM

Lasf Flve Flscal Years 1
TABLE 20

Fiscal Year

2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

RecreatioNParks
Number of athletic tournaments 2 32 38 35 31 NA

Aquatic Center

Number of Visitors 66793 70383 67914 58627 49089
Number of Annual Passes 137 140 140 159 239

Number of Monthly Passes 907 878 913 814 615

Streets

Road maintenance in linear feet 11 738 16393 12967 7 750 7955

Library
Circulation 44933 49004 47545 49754 51204

Central Communications

Number of Incoming Calls 561436 519038 503992 481609 436210

Number of911Calls 30702 27253 20496 17928 16075

Police

TrafficCitations 3593 2988 3188 4513 2506
TrafficWarning Tickets Issued 3536 4188 5297 8516 4237

Mileage on Police units 296422 299527 295802 300602 312246

Fire2
Fire Responses 118 80 86 71 68

Rescues 52 34 32 32 30

Animal ControUShelterAdoption
Number of Incoming Animals 1848 1 484 1784 1876 1812
Animals Adopted 401 343 342 304 301

Municipal Court

Traffic dispositions 5614 5132 4232 4429 3388
Other dispositions 1413 1505 1953 1790 1850

Public Works

Building Inspections 1 742 1892 1 779 1552 1538

Electric

kWh delivered 302190150 314772687 308467816 293512414 302886896
Customers served 7947 7728 7585 7556 7564

Gas

mddelivered 602719 563508 543062 557790 644920

Customers served 4050 3982 3965 3944 3956

Water
Gallonsdelivered 799548600 958383100 811893100 736565100 782517000
Customers served 6654 8372 6211 6134 6124

Sewer
Effluentplant gallons processed 810562100 751247000 759309000 696397880 727604500
CommerciaUndustrial gallons processed 394462700 406897 100 359857 100 352189200 381528924

Customers served 6073 5839 5766 5722 5719

Sanitation

Customers served 5168 5065 4979 4949 5158

1 The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year2003 Therefore tenyears of data will be accumulated over

time

2 Tournament data for2003 is notavailable

3 Operating indicators forthe Fire Department are based on calendar year Figures for 2007 areyeartodateDecember 12 2007
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CAPITAL ASSET STATISTICS BY FUNCTIONPROGRAM CITY OF BRENHAM
Last Five Fiscal Years 1

TABLE 21

Fiscal Year
2007 2006 2005 2004 2003

Functionprogram

RecreationParks
Park acerage 150 150 150 150 150
Parks 7 7 7 7 7

Aquatic enters 1 1 1 1 1

Baseball fields 8 8 8 8 8

Softball fields 9 9 9 9 9

Tennis courts 6 6 6 6 6
Soccer fields 12 12 12 12 12

SkateboaM parks 1 1 1 1 1

Library
Libraries 1 1 1 1 1

Airports 1 1 1 1 1

Police
Stations 1 1 1 1 1
Police vehicles 38 33 34 33 33

Fire
Fire stations 1 1 1 1 1
Fire trucks 5 5 5 5 5

Animal controVshelteradoption
Shelters 1 1 1 1 1

Electric
Miles of service lines 116 115 113 112 110

Gas
Miles of service lines 111 111 110 109 107

Water
Miles of water mains 143 138 137 136 136

Sewer
Miles of sanitary sewers 135 129 128 127 127

Sanitation
Collection stations 1 1 1 1 1

Transfer stations 1 1 1 1 1

Recycling stations 1 1 1 1 1

1The City implemented GASB 34 the new reporting standard in fiscal year 2003 The refore tenyears of data will be accumulated over

time
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2007

A SUMMARY OF AUDIT RESULTS

The auditors report expresses an unqualified opinion on the basic financial statements

ofthe City ofBrenham Texas the City

2 No sigmficant deficiencies relating to the audit of the financial statements are reported
m the Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and

Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed m Accordance

with Government Auditing Standards

No instances of noncompliance material to the financial statements of the City of

Brenham were disclosed during the audit

4 No significant deficiencies relating to the audit of the mayor federal award programs are

reported m the Report on Compliance with Requirements Applicable to Each Mayor
Program and on Internal Control Over Compliance m Accordance with OMB Circular

A133

5 Audit findings that are required to be reported in accordance with Section 510aof

OMB CircularA133 are reported m this Schedule

6 The program tested as amajor program was the

U S Department ofTransportationTexasDepartment ofTransportation
CFDA No 20 106

7 The threshold for distinguishing Types A and B programs was 300000

The City did not qualify as aloesriskauditee
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CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS CONTINUED

FINDINGS FINANCIAL STATEMENT AUDIT

None

FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS MAJOR FEDERAL AWARD PROGRAMS AUDIT

071 Grant Administration

Condition and Criteria In a prior year the City incorrectly entered costs associated

with grant funds into an internal spreadsheet and therefore incorrectly calculated the

Citys portion of allocable costs This error was discovered by the Accounting
Manager

Effect The error was corrected m the current year and as aresult current year income

is misstated by4059

Recommendation We recommend that someone other than the preparer review the

internal spreadsheets

Response The spreadsheet calculations are now being reviewed by the Director of

Finance

PRIOR YEAR AUDIT FINDINGS

061 Municipal court

Condition Municipal court clerks collect payments of fines post payments to the

computer system prepare deposit slips reconcile deposits to collection reports post
adjustments and generate warrants To help offset this weakness the accounting

department reconciles the municipal court collections to the general ledger and

reconciles the bank accounts In addition municipal court fudges review adjustments
and the CFO reviews the reconciliations

Criteria The duties ofreceiving and posting payments should be segregated

Effect Because ofthe lack of segregation ofduties cash could be misappropnated

Recommendation Procedures should be implemented whereby management can

determine that all adjustments were approved by the municipalcourtudges

Response The accounting supervisor is reconciling the municipal court reports to the

general ledger and reconciles the bank accounts The municipal court fudges review

adjustments including noncashadjustments and a billing clerk reconciles adjustment
registers to the packets
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CITY OFBRENHAM TEXAS
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OFFEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER30 2007

ACCRUED OR FEDERAU ACCRUED OR
FEDERAL GRANTOR FEDERAL PROGRAM DEFERRED STATE FEDERAU NET DEFERRED

PASSTHROUGH GRANTOR CFDA GRANT AWARD REVENUE AT FUNDS STATE OTHER REVENUE AT
PROGRAM TITLE NUMBER NUMBER AMOUNT 083006 RECENED EXPENDITURES TRANSACTIONS 08130107

USDEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

Bulletproof Vest Partnership 2002 Grant 16607 2799 2799 2405 394
Bulletproof Vest Partnership 2006 Grant 16607 2499 1238 1238
Bulletproof Vest Partnership 2007 Grant 16607 1248
COPSLaw Enforcement Technology Grant 16710 2006CKV1IX0147 148084 124277 124277

154630 2799 2405 125515 394 125515

USDEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Texas Department of Agriculture
Texas Community Development Program Texas Capital Fund 14228 150000 150000 150000

USDEPARTMENT OF HOMELAND SECURITY

Assistance t0 Firefighters Grant 97044 EMW2006FG04941 191382 191382 191382

USDEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Texas Department of Transportation
Transportation EnhancementTEA21ProjectBrenham Greenways 20205 091719039 1832029 16055 16055
Selective TrafficEnforcement ProgramClickItOr Ticket 20609 5000 1888 1888

1837029 16055 17943 1888
Texas Department of Transportation

Routine Airport Maintenance Program RAMP M617 BRENM 30000 9371 9325 46
RoufineAirport Maintenance Program RAMP M717 BRENM 50000 9745 9745
Routine Airport Maintenance Program RAMP M817 BRENM 50000

130000 9371 9325 9745 46 9745

TOTAL FEDERAL AND STATE CASH AWARDS 2463041 178225 371055 328530 440 135260



CITY OF BRENHAM TEXAS

SCHEDULE OFEXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS Continued
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30 2007

FEDERAL GRANTOR

PASSTHROUGH GRANTOR

PROGRAM TITLE

FEDERAL

CFDA

NUMBER

GRANT

NUMBER

PROGRAM

AWARD

AMOUNT

ACCRUED OR

DEFERRED
REVENUE AT

093008

FEDERAL

STATE

FUNDS

RECEIVED

FEDERAU

STATE

EXPENDITURES

NET

OTHER

TRANSACTIONS

ACCRUED OR

DEFERRED
REVENUE AT

093007

USDEPARTMENT OF HOUSING AND URBAN DEVELOPMENT

Brazos Valley Council of Governments 1
Section 8 Housing Assistance and Voucher Program 14871 TX540V0 356549 4071 300059 279770 4071 20289

USDEPARTMENT OFTRANSPORTATION FAA

Texas Department of Transportation 2
Federally Assisted Airport Development Grant HANGAR 20106 06HGBRENM 894980 632106 632106
FederallyAssisted Airport Development Grant RUNWAY 20106 0717BRENM 387000 89945 89945

1281980 722051 722051

TOTAL NONCASHFEDERAL AND STATE AWARDS
co

1638529 4071 1022110 1001821 4071 20289

1 The City is thegrantee forthe Section 8 grant program but contracts with the Brazos Valley Councl of Governments BVCOG to administer the grants
All fiscal and administrative responsiblilities rest withBVCOG and no funds aredirectly received orexpended by the City

2 The City remits its matching fundsnuirements to the State Department of Transportation whichacts as sponsor forthese airport development programs
No funds aredirectly received by theCity
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	Text1: Note:  The information provided in this CAFR has not been updated for developments subsequent to the date of the independent auditor's report.


